
1 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2024 
6:00 P.M. 

GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 
9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Guadalupe Town Council 
and to the public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on Thursday, 
February 8, 2024, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council 
Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona. Meetings are streamed live on the Town of Guadalupe Facebook page 
at https://www.facebook.com/guadalupeaz.org. 

AGENDA 
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of the November 9, 2023, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes.

E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items
that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for
the Call to the Audience agenda item unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please note
that those wishing to comment on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity at the
time the item is heard.

F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATION:

G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS:

1. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9050 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  (RZ2024-
01):  Hold a public hearing for a rezoning request of the property located at 9050 South Avenida del
Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-06-373 comprising approximately 2.80 acres) that is
currently vacant and zoned R1-9 Single Family Residential to Planned Area Development (PAD) to
facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 132 family-oriented
affordable rental units in two phases. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing
residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide a maximum
building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 60 units per acre. Custom parking and setback
standards are also part of the PAD application.  The Applicant is the Town of Guadalupe, property
owner.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (items G1 – G6 related)



2 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

2. REZONING REQUEST – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9050 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
RZ2024-01):  Council will consider and may take action to approve or deny a rezoning request of the
property located at 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-06-373
comprising approximately 2.80 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned R1-9 Single Family Residential
to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project,
comprised of 132 family-oriented affordable rental units in two phases. Buildings will be set back a
minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development
standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 60 units per acre.
Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD application.  The Applicant is the Town
of Guadalupe, property owner.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  (items G1
– G6 related)

3. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9080 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
(RZ2024-02):  Hold a public hearing for a rezoning request of the property located at 9080 South
Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-12-121, comprising approximately 0.34
acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development
(PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units
for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of
alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and
maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD
application. The Applicant is the Town of Guadalupe, property owner.  Council may provide direction to
the Town Manager / Clerk.  (items G1 – G6 related)

4. REZONING REQUEST – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9080 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
(RZ2024-02):  Council will consider and may take action to approve or deny a rezoning request of the
property located at 9080 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-12-121,
comprising approximately 0.34 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial
to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project,
comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing
residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide a maximum
building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback
standards are also part of the PAD application. The Applicant is the Town of Guadalupe, property owner. 
Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  (items G1 – G6 related)

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9084 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
(RZ2024-03):  Hold a public hearing for a rezoning request of the property located at 9084 South
Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-12-113, comprising approximately 0.65
acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development
(PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units
for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of
alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and
maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD
application. The Applicant is the Town of Guadalupe, property owner.  Council may provide direction to
the Town Manager / Clerk. (items G1 – G6 related)

6. REZONING REQUEST – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9084 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
(RZ2024-03):  Council will consider and may take action to approve or deny a rezoning request of the
property located at 9084 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-12-113,
comprising approximately 0.65 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial
to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project,
comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing
residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide a maximum
building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback
standards are also part of the PAD application. The Applicant is the Town of Guadalupe, property owner. 
Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (items G1 – G6 related)



3 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

7. CHIEF FISCAL OFFICER DESIGNATION (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.03):  Council will consider
and may take action to adopt a Resolution R2024.03 designating Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk as
the Chief Fiscal Officer, as required annually by the Arizona Auditor General through the Arizona
Revised Statutes §§42-17101 and 42-17102.  The Chief Fiscal Officer is responsible for officially
submitting the Fiscal Year 2024 Expenditure Limitation Report to the Auditor General.  Council may
provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

H. TOWN MANAGER/CLERK’S COMMENTS

I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

J. ADJOURNMENT



 
 

 

February 2, 2024  

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  February 8, 2024, Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each agenda item.   

Agenda Items: 

D1.  NOVEMBER 9, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES (PAGES 6 – 12):  
 
G1. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9050 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  (RZ2024-01) 
(PAGES 13 – 76):  A public hearing is required to receive public input regarding a request to rezone the property 
located at 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-06-373 comprising approximately 
2.80 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned R1-9 Single Family Residential to Planned Area Development (PAD) 
to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 132 family-oriented affordable rental 
units in two phases. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. 
The proposed PAD development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 
60 units per acre. Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD application. (items G1 –  G6 are 
related) 
 
G2. REZONING REQUEST – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9050 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  RZ2024-01) 
(PAGES 13 – 76):  Council to approve or deny a request to rezone the property located at 9050 South Avenida del 
Yaqui that is currently vacant and zoned R1-9 Single Family Residential to Planned Area Development (PAD) to 
facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 132 family-oriented affordable rental 
units in two phases. (items G1 –  G6 are related) 
 
G3. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9080 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  (RZ2024-02) 
(PAGES 77 – 121): A public hearing is required to receive public input regarding a request to rezone the property 
located at 9080 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-12-121, comprising approximately 
0.34 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) 
to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings 
will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD 
development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. 
Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD application. (items G1 –  G6 are related) 
 
G4. REZONING REQUEST – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9080 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  (RZ2024-02) 
(PAGES 77 – 121): Council to approve or deny a request to rezone the property located at 9080 South Avenida del 
Yaqui that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) to 
facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. (items G1 –  
G6 are related) 
 
  

4



 
 
G5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9084 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  (RZ2024-03) 
(PAGES 122 – 169): A public hearing is required to receive public input regarding a request to rezone the property 
located at 9084 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County Assessor parcel #301-12-113, comprising approximately 
0.65 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) 
to facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings 
will be set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD 
development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. 
Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD application. (items G1 –  G6 are related) 
 
G6. REZONING REQUEST – REZONING REQUEST FOR 9084 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI  (RZ2024-03) 
(PAGES 122 – 169):  Council to approve or deny a request to rezone the property located at 9084 South Avenida del 
Yaqui that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) to 
facilitate future development of the TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. (items G1 –  
G6 are related) 
 
G7.  CALL CHIEF FISCAL OFFICER DESIGNATION (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.03) (PAGE 170):  Council 
will consider and may take action to adopt a resolution designating Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk as the Chief 
Fiscal Officer, as required annually by the Arizona Auditor General through the Arizona Revised Statutes §§42-
17101 and 42-17102.  The Chief Fiscal Officer is responsible for officially submitting the Fiscal Year 2025 
Expenditure Limitation Report to the Auditor General.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.
  

5



 

1 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Minutes 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

November 09, 2023 
 

Minutes of the Guadalupe Town Council Regular Meeting held on November 09, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona. 

 
A. Mayor Valerie Molina called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
Councilmembers Present: Mayor Valerie Molina, Vice Mayor Ricardo Vital, Councilmember 
Mary Bravo, Councilmember  Esteban F. V. Fuerte, and Councilmember Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmembers via Zoom: Councilmember Elvira Osuna 
 
Staff Present:  Jeff Kulaga – Town Manager / Clerk, Dave Ledyard – Town Attorney 
and Rocio Ruiz – Deputy Town Clerk 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Councilmember Soto provided the invocation.   Mayor Molina then led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None. 
 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
Mayor Molina stated that the Call to the Public is an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the Council on items that are not on the agend or included on the consent agenda and 
asked whether any members of the public would like to address the Council. 
 
Mayor Molina called upon Janet Florer to address the Council. Ms. Florer focused on the current 
traffic issues, emphasizing that the speed bump on Vauo Nawi and Guadalupe causes significant 
congestion, preventing residents from making a right turn. Ms. Florer highlighted that the proposed 
project lacks traffic management and parking provisions. Ms. Florer questioned the accuracy of 
the project's renderings, which depict people walking despite the absence of nearby supermarkets. 
Ms. Florer sought clarification on the status and details of the project, expressing concerns about 
its impact on traffic and the community. 
 
Mayor Molina called upon Enrique Vega to address the Council. Mr. Vega emphasized the 
importance of Indigenous Month and highlighted unresolved issues after five hundred years. Mr. 
Vega expressed concerns about the financial struggles in the Town of Guadalupe and shared his 
perspective on income calculations, stating he does not make $13,000 a month. Drawing from his 
experience as a former social worker in Guadalupe, Mr. Vega discussed the challenges with drugs 
and addiction in the community. Mr. Vega proposed a solution to address the lack of affordable 
recreational opportunities for Guadalupe kids, suggesting a Town-owned van to shuttle them to 
the pool for a nominal fee. Despite acknowledging the Town's financial difficulties, Mr. Vega 
proposed seeking financial support from community members and specifically mentioned Art 
Moreno, owner of the Los Angeles Angels baseball team. Mr. Vega recommended reaching out to 

6



 

2 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

Mr. Moreno to help address the community's needs. 
 
F. MAYOR AND COUNCIL PRESENTATION:  None. 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING – MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM – TOWN 

OF GUADALUPE ROADWAY AND NEIGHBORHOOD STREETLIGHTING REHABILITATION 
PROJECT, PHASE 3 (RESOLUTION NO. R2023.17) 

Mayor Molina stated council will hold a public hearing to obtain public input regarding adopting 
resolution R2023.17, authorizing Town staff to submit an application to the Maricopa County Housing 
and Community Development Division for funding under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s (HUD) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for a Roadway & 
Neighborhood Streetlight Rehabilitation Project. The project includes removing and replacing 16 
streetlights and installing 18 new streetlights in the Cuarenta Area Neighborhood; and, engineering 
design/construction document preparation, construction bid process oversight, construction 
management, quality control and inspection services.  The Project would be funded by the Maricopa 
County CDBG Program for fiscal year 2024-25.  The requested grant funding amount totals 
$498,000.  If adopted and approved, the Project would begin November 10, 2023, and conclude on 
November 30, 2025.    
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, stated Maricopa County mandates a public hearing for the project. 
The project pertains to lighting in the Cuarenta neighborhood, involving a $498,000 grant from the 
county to the Town through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Staff 
requests approval to proceed with the grant application. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to open the public hearing; second by Councilmember  
Fuerte.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
No members of the public spoke. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Soto to close the public hearing; second by Councilmember Fuerte.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Councilmembers held a public hearing to obtain public input regarding adopting resolution R2023.17, 
authorizing Town staff to submit an application to the Maricopa County Housing and Community 
Development Division for funding under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s 
(HUD) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for a Roadway & Neighborhood 
Streetlight Rehabilitation Project. The project includes removing and replacing 16 streetlights and 
installing 18 new streetlights in the Cuarenta Area Neighborhood; and, engineering design/construction 
document preparation, construction bid process oversight, construction management, quality control 
and inspection services.  The Project would be funded by the Maricopa County CDBG Program for 
fiscal year 2024-25.  The requested grant funding amount totals $498,000.  
 
2. MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM – TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
ROADWAY AND NEIGHBORHOOD STREETLIGHTING REHABILITATION PROJECT, PHASE 3 
(RESOLUTION NO. R2023.17) 
Mayor Molina stated Council will consider and may take action to adopt Resolution No. R2023.17 
authorizing Town staff to submit an application to the Maricopa County Housing and Community 
Development Division for funding under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s 
(HUD) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for a Roadway & Neighborhood 
Streetlight Rehabilitation Project. The project includes removing and replacing 16 streetlights and 

7



 

3 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

installing 18 new streetlights in the Cuarenta Area Neighborhood; and, engineering design/construction 
document preparation, construction bid process oversight, construction management, quality control 
and inspection services.  The Project would be funded by the Maricopa County CDBG Program for 
fiscal year 2024-25.  The requested grant funding amount totals $498,000.  If adopted and approved, 
the Project would begin November 10, 2023, and conclude on November 30, 2025. 
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, highlighted streets in the Cuarenta neighborhood for the removal 
and replacement of streetlights. The focus was on the removal of 16 streetlights and the installation of 
18 new lights in the neighborhood. The project includes undergrounding, trenching, conduit work, and 
the addition of bases, poles, and mast arms. Mr. Kulaga stated that all necessary parts and construction 
management are included in the proposal. This initiative represents phase three of the Town's street 
lighting rehabilitation program, following an inventory and assessment conducted in March of the 
previous year. Mr. Kulaga stated staff recommends  approval of the project. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding whether the project includes extra lighting in 
the Plaza area, Mr. Kulaga stated that it can be considered as part of the project.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Fuerte to approve agenda item G2; second by Councilmember Bravo.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Councilmembers adopted Resolution No. R2023.17 authorizing Town staff to submit an application to 
the Maricopa County Housing and Community Development Division for funding under the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program for a Roadway & Neighborhood Streetlight Rehabilitation Project. The project includes 
removing and replacing 16 streetlights and installing 18 new streetlights in the Cuarenta Area 
Neighborhood; and, engineering design/construction document preparation, construction bid process 
oversight, construction management, quality control and inspection services.  The Project would be 
funded by the Maricopa County CDBG Program for fiscal year 2024-25.  The requested grant funding 
amount totals $498,000.  If adopted and approved, the Project would begin November 10, 2023, and 
conclude on November 30, 2025.  
 
3. SOLARES NEIGHBORHOOD STREET LIGHTING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PHASE 2 
ENGINEERING, DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES CONTRACT 
Mayor Molina stated Council will consider and may take action to award contract (C2023-28) in the 
amount of $176,739 to the Town Engineer, Dibble Engineering, for engineering, design and 
construction document preparation, construction bid process oversight, construction management, 
quality control and inspection services for Roadway and Neighborhood Lighting Project, Phase 2, 
consisting of removing 41 street lights in the Solares neighborhood and replacing with 48 new street 
lights.  This contract is funded through Community Development Block Grant funding of $493,600 as 
approved by the Town Council at the October 27, 2022, Regular Council Meeting and awarded by 
Maricopa County on February 8, 2023.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, stated HUD funding totaling $493,000 was awarded a year ago and 
is currently in progress. The initial step, upon grant approval, involves creating design and engineering 
plans for construction. A contract of $176,000 is recommended for the town engineer, Dibble 
Engineering, to oversee the creation of plans and manage construction and bidding processes. The 
project focuses on relocating 41 streetlights in the Solares neighborhood and replacing them with 48 
new lights.  Staff recommends approval. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding light poles on private property, Vince 
Gibbons, Town Engineer, clarified that poles located on private property would be removed and 
would be replaced within the public right of way. During the construction phase, homeowners with 
light poles on their private properties will be informed accordingly. 
 

8



 

4 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

Motion by Councilmember Fuerte to approve agenda item G3; second by Vice Mayor Vital.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Councilmembers approved contract (C2023-28), in the amount of $176,739, to the Town Engineer, 
Dibble Engineering, for engineering, design and construction document preparation, construction bid 
process oversight, construction management, quality control and inspection services for Roadway and 
Neighborhood Lighting Project, Phase 2, consisting of removing 41 streetlights in the Solares 
neighborhood and replacing with 48 new streetlights.  This contract is funded through Community 
Development Block Grant funding of $493,600 as approved by the Town Council at the October 27, 
2022, Regular Council Meeting and awarded by Maricopa County on February 8, 2023.   
 
4. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) AWARD STATUS REPORT 
Mayor Molina stated Council will receive a brief report regarding awarded Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funding from Maricopa County Housing and Community Development Division 
under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to the Town.   Since 2009, the 
Town of Guadalupe has received $5.9M in CDBG grants, providing funding for 16 infrastructure 
improvement projects.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, provided an overview of CDBG grants from HUD funds received 
since 2009.  Mr. Kulaga highlighted nearly $6 million in projects, emphasizing the completion of street 
repaving and ongoing sewer system rehabilitation. Mr. Kulaga stated grant applications are competitive 
and mentioned the Solares neighborhood streetlighting project's approval and the potential addition of 
$498,000 with the approval of grants, as well as three active grants, including wastewater system 
rehabilitation and street construction, amounting to $1.5 million in ongoing projects. Mr. Kulaga 
emphasized that these initiatives are funded primarily through grants, minimizing Town expenses, and 
provided an overview of historical grant performance and current on-going projects.  
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding grant opportunities for slurry when 
conducting road maintenance and repairs, Mr. Kulaga confirmed it may be a possibility and 
suggested looking into grants for slurry and/or overlays, noting that these types of projects may 
not be as competitive. 
 
5. ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - UNIFORM 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE TOWN’S TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX (RESOLUTION NO. 
R2023.18) 
Mayor Molina stated Council will consider and may adopt resolution (R2023.18) authorizing the 
Mayor, or designee, to sign an intergovernmental agreement (C2023-29) (Agreement) with the 
Arizona Department of Revenue (AZDOR) related to uniform administration of the Town of 
Guadalupe Transaction Privilege Tax.  This Agreement will initially be in force through December 31, 
2024, and will automatically renew each year thereafter on January 1 for a term of one year, without 
any action required by the Town Council or by AZDOR through December 31, 2028.  The Agreement 
is related to the AZDOR administration of Transaction Privilege Tax on behalf of the Town of 
Guadalupe and is required under A.R.S. § 42-6001 and 6002.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, stated that there is a state mandate from the Department of 
Revenue, requiring the adoption of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). Commencing on June 13, 
2024, and expiring at the end of this year, the current four-year term of the IGA is set to conclude. 
This mandate applies to all municipalities in Arizona and necessitates the implementation of uniform 
methods for the administration, collection, audits, and licensing of local sales taxes by the 
Department of Revenue. Mr. Kulaga stated that, if approved, the IGA will remain in effect until 
December 31, 2024, with automatic renewals until the end of 2028. Mr. Kulaga mentioned that, 
following a sunset review, a new IGA might be required in 2029, extending through December 2037. 
Staff recommends approval.  
 

9



 

5 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

Motion by Councilmember Bravo to approve agenda item G5; second by Councilmember 
Fuerte.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Councilmembers adopted resolution (R2023.18) authorizing the Mayor, or designee, to sign an 
intergovernmental agreement (C2023-29) (Agreement) with the Arizona Department of Revenue 
(AZDOR) related to uniform administration of the Town of Guadalupe Transaction Privilege Tax.  This 
Agreement will initially be in force through December 31, 2024, and will automatically renew each 
year thereafter on January 1 for a term of one-year, without any action required by the Town Council 
or by AZDOR through December 31, 2028.  The Agreement is related to the AZDOR administration 
of Transaction Privilege Tax on behalf of the Town of Guadalupe and is required under A.R.S. § 42-
6001 and 6002.   
 
6. VERIZON LICENSE AGREEMENT RENEWAL 
Mayor Molina stated Council will consider and may approve authorizing the Mayor to sign renewal of a 
Wired Telecommunications License and Right-of-Way Use Agreement (C2018-29A) (Agreement) with 
MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corporation (d/b/a Verizon Access Transmission Services), 
effective upon Council approval.  Approval of this Agreement will allow Verizon to continue to construct, 
operate, maintain, and repair telecommunication equipment in Town right-of-way.  In exchange for use 
of Town right-of-way, Verizon agrees to pay the Town of Guadalupe a $2,500 application fee, and 
associated maintenance and usage fees.  
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, stated that this agreement authorizes Verizon to utilize the Town's 
rights of way for their services. Having fulfilled their initial application fee and construction permit fees, 
Verizon is also responsible for any costs related to rights of way construction, improvements, or repairs. 
These obligations include the repair and replacement, in kind, to the same level. Mr. Kulaga stated 
Verizon has been cooperative since 2018. Staff recommends approval. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding Verizon's prior involvement before road 
construction, Mr. Kulaga explained that Verizon had taken proactive measures before the Town's street 
renovation. While no immediate plans with Verizon are known, Mr. Kulaga acknowledged that 
unforeseen events might arise in the future. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fuerte to approve agenda item G6; second by Vice Mayor Vital.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Councilmembers approved a renewal of a Wired Telecommunications License and Right-of-Way Use 
Agreement (C2018-29A) (Agreement) with MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corporation (d/b/a 
Verizon Access Transmission Services), effective upon Council approval.  Approval of this Agreement 
will allow Verizon to continue to construct, operate, maintain, and repair telecommunication equipment 
in Town right-of-way.  In exchange for use of Town right-of-way, Verizon agrees to pay the Town of 
Guadalupe a $2,500 application fee, and associated maintenance and usage fees.  
 
7. TOWN MANAGER / CLERK EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 
Mayor Molina stated Council will consider and may take action to approve a contract (C2023-30) 
between the Town of Guadalupe and the appointed Town Manager / Clerk, Jeff Kulaga.  The term of 
this contract is three years, commencing on November 10, 2023, and terminating on November 9, 2026, 
with an initial annual salary of $165,000.  This is the third employment contract with Mr. Kulaga, with 
the first approved by Council on October 17, 2017, and a second on October 28, 2021.   
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve agenda item G7; second by Councilmember Bravo.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Councilmembers approved a contract (C2023-30) between the Town of Guadalupe and the appointed 
Town Manager / Clerk, Jeff Kulaga.  The term of this contract is three years, commencing on November 

10



 

6 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

10, 2023, and terminating on November 9, 2026, with an initial annual salary of $165,000.  This is the 
third employment contract with Mr. Kulaga, with the first approved by Council on October 17, 2017, and 
a second on October 28, 2021.   
 

H. TOWN MANAGER/CLERK’S COMMENTS 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 

o Thanked Mayor and Council for their support. 
o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Pledged to continue working to serve the Guadalupe community to the best of his ability. 
o Announced the installation of the new crosswalk at Calle Encinas. 
o Noted positive assessments from respective agencies for the CAP and the Senior Center, 

emphasizing effective service delivery. 
o Announced Veteran's Day parade, encouraging community attendance. 

 
 
I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

Councilmember Osuna 
o Thanked staff for their work. 

Councilmember Bravo 
o Thanked residents for watching on Facebook. 
o Thanked staff for their work. 

Councilmember Fuerte 
o Announced Little League fall ball has ended and preparations for Spring Little League are 
underway. 

Councilmember Soto 
o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Invited residents to visit the playground in her suite at the mercado. 
o Encouraged residents to look out for each other during the holiday season. 
o Encouraged residents to decorate Avenida del Yaqui for the upcoming light parade. 

 
Vice Mayor Vital 

o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Thanked residents for watching on Facebook. 
o Announced Tribal Building will be closed November 10. 
o Invited residents to Christmas Party on December 20 at the Church Plaza. 
o Wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

Mayor Molina 
o Announced Town Hall will be closed November 10. 
o Urged Residents not to park along the new Avenida del Yaqui sidewalks. 
o Announced a bike repair event from 12pm – 2pm at the Guadalupe Fire Department. 
o Announced Christmas food box / tree giveaway at Frank School, November 18. 
 

  

11



 

7 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to adjourn the Regular Council Meeting; second by Councilmember 
Bravo.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:42 p.m. 
 
 

 ____________________________ 
          Valerie Molina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the November 
09, 2023, Town of Guadalupe, Town Council Regular Meeting.   I further certify the meeting was duly 
called and held, and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 
 

12



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283   (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 1 of 5

1. Please complete this application and attach all required items as outlined.
2. Once submitted, please allow a minimum of two weeks for staff to review and determine whether

submittal is complete or additional information/material is needed.
3. Once application is determined complete and acceptable, staff will schedule a public hearing.
4. Complete/accepted application must be submitted to the Town Clerk in final form no less than 30 days prior to

scheduled Town council meeting. Applicant must attend all public hearings/meetings.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

Project name: 

Existing use of property:  

Proposed use of property: 

Existing zoning: Requested zoning (if applicable):

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Township Range

Maricopa County Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)*: 

Subdivision Name & Lot # (if applicable/available)   

*Available at: https://mcassessor.maricopa.gov/

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

Name:   

Mailing Address:

Contact phone #:   Email:

Status (owner, agent, lessee, etc): 

APPLICATION MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING (per Town Code 154.036): 

Filing fee(s) (as outlined on page 2) – attach

Legal description – attach

Letter of explanation – complete page 3

Plot plan – attach

Site plan (drawn to scale, showing what is planned for the property, including lot dimensions, existing and proposed buildings,
etc.) – attach

Vicinity map of property owners within 150’ of property – attach

Mailing labels (Name/Address) for property owners within 150’ of property – attach

Proof of property ownership

PLANNING & ZONING APPLICATION
FOR: VARIANCE, CONDITIONAL USE OR ZONING CHANGE

Town Commons  (A)

Vacant

Multi-Family Residential

 R-1-9 PAD

301-06-373

1S 4E

Address: 9050 S Avenida del Yaqui

Legal Description*: Section 4

Town of Guadalupe

   9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui

(480)-730-3080

Owner

WAIVED

DEF

DEF

EAST GUADALUPE BLOCK 14 TR A-G

clerk@guadalupeaz.org

 (NE Corner / 2.80 acres / Lot A)

13



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283 (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 2 of 5 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  

______CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  

______VARIANCE FOR (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):

______Lot width ______Lot depth ______Building height

______Front setback ______Rear setback ______Sideyard setback

______ZONING CHANGE – AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP FOR:

______Single-family Residential 

______Multi-family Residential, Commercial, or Industrial Districts

______Planned Area Development 

PROPERTY OWNER: (If different from Applicant, complete the Property Owner Authorization statement below. Property owner’s 

signature must be notarized. For more than one owner, attach a separate sheet with notarized signatures, names and addresses.)

 Email:

to file this application and act on my behalf in 

Name: N/A

Mailing Address:

Phone #:  

PROPERTY OWNER AUTHORIZATION:

I hereby authorize  

regard to this application. 

 (Signature) (Date)

(Notary Public)

The State of County of 
Subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me by  , the principal, 
and subscribed and sworn to me by  , the witness, this _______day of 
_________________(month), ________(year). 

(signed) 

Notary (Rezoning Applications Only)

X

X

14



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283  (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 3 of 5 

LETTER OF EXPLANATION:

Briefly describe the nature and intent of the proposed development and reasons justifying the request. Include references to effects on 

surrounding neighborhoods and the town at large.  

FEE SCHEDULE: 

Type of Application Fee Calculate Fees

Appeals of administrative decisions $25 

Site plan review application $50 

Amendments to the Zoning Map for: 

Continued items, continued at the request of the applicant after 
the property has been posted and public hearing notices are 
mailed 

$25 

Multi-family residential, commercial and industrial districts $400 

Planned area development $400 

Single-family residential $100 

Site plan review application $50 + $25/acre for 
each acre over one 

Conditional Use Permits 

Manufactured homes $50 

All other $50 

Variances 

Single-family residential $50 

All other $50 

TOTAL 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE: 

 (Signature)  (Date) 

View attached project narrative dated January 15, 2024.

$0

$400

Waived

15



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283 (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 4 of 5 

STAFF USE ONLY 

Town of Guadalupe Review Process 

Case#  

Zoning District:  

Date of Application:  

Fee:  

Accepted by:  

Date Application Deemed Acceptable by Staff: 

Date of Legal Advertisement:   

Date(s) of Public Hearing(s):   

Council Decision:   

16



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283    services@guadalupeaz.org   (480) 730-3080 08/02/2022  5 of 5

RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – TOWN CODE §154.066 (E) (1) & (2)

MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS

Zoning 
District

Minimum Lot Area per 
D.U. First 2 D.U.

Minimum Lot Area 
per D.U. 

Add’l D.U.

Minimum 
Lot Width

Front Side Street Side Rear Maximum 
Building Height

R-2 5,000 square feet 75’ 25’ 7’* 20’ 20’ 30’

R-3 5,000 square feet 2,500 square feet 100’ 20’ 7’* 15’ 15’ 30’

R-4 5,000 square feet 1,250 square feet 100’ 20’ 7’* 15’ 15’ 30’

*For ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side.

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

Zoning District MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS Maximum Height

Front Side Street Side Rear

R-1-9 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’

R-1-6 25’ 7’ 15’ 10’ 30’

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – TOWN CODE §154.067(F)

Zoning District MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS Maximum Height

Front Side Street Side Rear

C-1 25’ 12’ 15’ 15’ 30’

C-2 20’ 12’ 15’ 15’ 30’

C-Mix 30’ 20’ 30’ 30’ 40’

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

TOWN OF GUADALUPE – ZONING CODE SETBACK REQUIREMENTSTOWN OF GUADALUPE – ZONING CODE SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

17



North 

Vicinity map of properties

“A” in the image below is APN 301-06-373 (approx. 2.80 acres) 
“B” in the image below is APN 301-12-121 (approx. 0.34 acres) 
“C” in the image below is APN 301-12-113 (approx. 0.65 acres) 

18



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 1 of 13 

PAD PROJECT NARRATIVE 

Town Commons 
Rezoning CASE Nos. RZ2024‐01, RZ2024‐02 and RZ2024‐03 

Submi al: January 15, 2024 

Project Loca on: NEC and NWC of 
Guadalupe Road & Avenida Del Yaqui 

 APNs 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 

19



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 2 of 13 

Project Overview 

On December 9, 2022, the Town issued a Request for Proposals seeking a development partner 
for the future development of vacant Town‐owned proper es at the corner of Guadalupe Road 
and Avenida Del Yaqui. Respondents with team capability, previous experience, financial acumen 
and resources, and a reasonable method of approach were sought.   

A er review and considera on of the proposals, an award was made by the Town Council in a 
regular public mee ng on March 9, 2023, to enter into exclusive nego a ons with The Richman 
Group for a Development Agreement comprising the subject property.  This Development 
Agreement has been submi ed for concurrent review and considera on by the Town Council 
along with this rezoning request.  

This rezoning and the Development Agreement, if approved, may result in a The Richman Group 
comple ng a compe ve applica on to the State Department of Housing for award of project tax 
credits or other funding support for their proposed mul family project in three dis nct phases. 
This rezoning will help support these compe ve applica on efforts. 

Town staff is making this rezoning request as representa ves of the Town to facilitate this future 
development.  A vicinity map of the proper es is a ached here as Exhibit A.  As further described 
in the concurrent Development Agreement, The Richman Group proposes to lease the subject 
proper es to develop affordable housing projects on the subject proper es in three separate 
phases, both comprising the “Town Commons” project. 

Two Phases of Town Commons, on the NEC of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui, will consist 
of nearly 132 family‐oriented affordable rental units – 68 and 64 units respec vely.  Phase two 
of Town Commons, on the NWC of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui, will consist of 60 
affordable homes for seniors. 

The Town Commons will create an intergenera onal community in three developments to serve 
neighbors seeking to con nue living in Guadalupe as they age, and residents who need accessible 
rent to grow deeper roots with their family.  

The proposed project has the poten al to help the Town overcome its growing structural deficit 
by increasing the poten al for resident spending, thereby suppor ng local retail businesses that 
contribute transac on taxes in support of General Fund services residents have come to expect 
and deserve.    

The loca on of the project phases at the intersec on of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui 
provides the poten al for posi ve advancement of community art, architecture and resident 
ac vity at the most frequently travelled intersec on in our community. 

20



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 3 of 13 

Summary of Request 

The Town is the owner of the currently vacant proper es designated as APN numbers 301‐06‐373 
(zoned “R1‐9” in the Town and comprising approximately 2.80 acres); 301‐12‐121 (zoned “C‐1” in 
the Town and comprising approximately 0.34 acres); and 301‐12‐113 (zoned “C‐1” in the Town 
comprising approximately 0.65 acres) at the NE and SW corners of Guadalupe Road and Avenida 
Del Yaqui.   The Town is advancing this rezoning of the subject proper es to facilitate new 
development of mul ‐family housing. 

Rela onship to Adjacent Proper es 

The following table describes the uses, zoning and General Plan designa on for the proper es 
immediately adjacent to the subject proper es. 

Direc on Surrounding Uses Zoning  

North Residen al, Commercial C‐1, R1‐9 and R1‐6 

East Residen al R1‐9  

South Residen al, Commercial 
Civic Center C‐1, R1‐9 and R1‐6 

West Residen al R1‐6 

Conformance with General Plan 

Currently, the Town has a Council‐approved Master Plan that has served as a precursor 
document to a General Plan as defined by ARS 9‐461.05.  That document was adopted by Town 
Council on January 2, 2004, and provides guidance for future development, including: 

Overall Goals – Four are described in the plan 
o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town
o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town
o Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance Economic Development
o Improve Quality of Life

21



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 4 of 13 

This proposed PAD conforms to the long‐range plan in the following ways: 
 

o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
By creating opportunities for new and affordable housing, Guadalupe residents who are 
seeking modern construction and amenities will have additional choices to remain in Town, 
close to relatives and within the community they call home, at an affordable price. 

 

o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town & Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance 
Economic Development 
These underutilized properties, when successfully transitioned into residential communities, 
can help promote the further diversification of the Town’s retail tax base by encouraging 
private sector investment into new retail uses ‐ thereby helping to resolve the Town’s current 
structural deficit and ensuring the continuation of municipal services. 
 

o Improve Quality of Life 
There is a demonstrated need for new, affordable housing in the Town.   

 

 
 

 

 

22



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 5 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
Permi ed Uses 
 

All uses permi ed in the R‐4 Mul ‐Family Residen al District of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning 
Ordinance are permi ed with a residen al density of up to 60.0 units per acre for the NEC 
property (APN number 301‐06‐373 comprising approximately 2.80 acres); and 61.0 units per acre 
for the NWC proper es (APN numbers 301‐12‐121 & 301‐12‐113, comprising approximately 0.99 
acres). In addi on, up to 10,000 square feet of retail uses as iden fied in § 154.067.C. and  
154.067.D. ,COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS, are allowed across the phases of Town Commons.  All office 
uses are also allowed including professional, business, execu ve and all other office uses up to 
10,000 square feet for the phases of Town Commons. Live/work units are allowed. This PAD and 
Preliminary Development Plan establish the applicable development standards and design 
guidelines for the Property. 
 
 
PAD Development Standards 
 

All development standards in the C‐2 zoning district of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance 
shall apply on the Property, except as provided herein. In the event of a conflict between a 
provision of this applica on and a provision of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance, this 
applica on shall prevail. 
 

Density 
 

This amended PAD and accompanying PDP will allow the Property a maximum residen al 
density of 61.0 units per net acres across the Property and an overall density of 20.0 units 
per net acre across the original PAD Proper es. 
 
Building Height 

No building shall exceed 54 feet. 

23



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 6 of 13 

 
Streetscape Standards (from face of curb): 
 

i. Guadalupe Road: 18‐foot (minimum 6‐foot sidewalk and 8‐foot landscape strip) 

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui: 18‐foot (minimum 6‐foot sidewalk and 8‐foot landscape strip) 
 
Building Setback 

iii. Property Lines adjacent to exis ng Residen al uses, inclusive of alleys: 20 foot 
 
 
Parking 
 

The Project will incorporate surface parking and tuck‐under garages. As part of the visitor 
surface parking spaces at the main entry, the development will provide ridesharing 
loading/unloading parking spaces. The development may also provide several electrical 
charging sta ons for the residents. 
 
The parking will be well‐lit and landscaped to support a ground level experience in keeping 
with the standards of a high‐quality residen al community. Surface parking is set back at 
least 20 feet from all right‐of‐way lines. 
 
The Town currently requires the following parking: 

i. Minimum 1.0 parking spaces per efficiency unit 

ii. Minimum 1.5 parking spaces per each 1 and 2 bedroom unit 

iii. Minimum 2.0 parking spaces per each unit containing more than 2 bedrooms 
 

Each Project will provide the following parking: 

i. Minimum 1.25 parking spaces per dwelling unit for Phases 1 and 2 

ii. Minimum 0.5 parking spaces per dwelling unit for Phase 3 
 

 
Private Open Space 
 

The Town Commons project provides ameni es in its passive and ac ve recrea on areas. 
Open space areas are well integrated throughout the Project. On‐site ameni es provide an 
equal and balanced distribu on of recrea on for resident access. The type and quan ty of 
furnishings, hardscape and ac ve recrea on elements vary, depending upon the loca on 
within the project and type of experience programmed. 

 
 
 

24



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 7 of 13 

 
Devia ons 
 

The following include iden fied devia ons from code requirements for mul family housing, 
and provided Project design elements will replace contradic ng city standards: 
 
1. Landscape setback widths vary as iden fied above. 

 
2. A minimum 6‐foot wide public sidewalk is provided along Avenida Del Yaqui to 
accommodate the exis ng right‐of‐way. 
 
3. The streetscape standard is measured at 18 feet from face of curb. 
 
4. Building height is at 54 feet. 
 
5.  Minor  Modifica ons  for  Town  Commons:  Minor modifica ons shall be processed 
through an administra ve review by The Town Manager or designee. Modifica ons may 
include a 10% devia on to any approved development standard, including but not limited to 
required building setbacks, required streetscape dimensions, parking, density, building 
height, etc. 

 
 
Preliminary Development Plan 
 

A preliminary plan for development is a ached here as Exhibit B.  This plan will be advanced to a 
final plan for development through the development process of community outreach, planning 
and design.  The final plan for development, comprising but not limited to a site plan, open space 
plan, circula on plan, and plans for provision of u li es, public art, and offsite improvements will 
be reviewed and approved separately from this rezoning ac on through the Town’s normal plan 
review and permi ng processes.   
 
 
Architecture 
 

The Town Commons apartments are proposed as a comfortable urban architecture that takes 
references from the Town’s long history and tradi ons. Building on the transi on in the 
surrounding neighborhood toward this safe, clean and friendly environment, the architecture is 
proposed as an modern character of clean lines, open floor plans and a connec on to the 
outdoors, both visually and physically, providing a high design aesthe c. 
 

The overall architectural character for the development should respond to a regional awareness 
and history of the southwest and Arizona both visually and environmentally by: (1) 
acknowledging climate and solar considera ons; (2) u lizing natural light as much as possible; (3) 
using ver cal scale for contrast and importance; (4) choosing appropriate forms and materials; 

25



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 8 of 13 

(5) u lizing landscape materials to provide con nuity and aesthe cs; and (6) building a posi ve 
iden ty through a “sense of place” and architecture. 
 

An observer of the project on any side would note any expanse of building wall is broken up by a 
combina on of height and depth ar cula on, material changes, window and building openings, 
color, light and shadow control, and landscaping with upper, mid and pedestrian level treatments 
to create a visually interes ng and elegant design aesthe c in harmony with desert living. 
 

The project architecture and theming elements are carried into the amenity areas. Maintaining 
human scale building propor ons along street frontages create visual interest. Indoor spaces are 
integrated with outdoor spaces through a rac ve breezeways and project landscaping. 
 
 
Building Material/Color 
 

Accessory structures should be of similar architectural design and constructed of compa ble 
materials. Low reflec ve materials, textures, and colors should be used to reduce solar radia on. 
Choose colors which relate well to one another, to the proposed buildings and landscape 
materials and which are appropriate to the architecture and surrounding. 
 
 
Sustainability 
 

The Town Commons Apartments are designed with a focus on a range of sustainable 
considera ons to provide green building opportuni es for the development through building 
orienta on/loca on, shading, window design, building mechanics, conserva on of energy and 
water. 
 
The following are sustainable prac ces that are integrated into the Project: 
 

•Reusing a vacant infill property for the proposed mul ‐family development 

•Responding to the harsh southwest climate by incorpora ng materials and design method 
suitable for the region 

•Recognizing the value of human comfort zones and providing appropriate landscaping and 
adequate shading 

•Installing energy efficiency, Low E windows 

•Providing low vola le organic (VOC) paints, carpet and flooring 

•Providing light emi ng diode (LED) and energy efficient ligh ng technology within units, 
site, and parking ligh ng 

•Providing low flow plumbing fixtures to reduce water usage 

•Installing a minimum of 3 Energy Star rated ceiling fans. 

•Installing Energy Star rated hot water heater. 

•Providing high efficiency HVAC units 

26



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 9 of 13 

•Using roofing materials that specify a high Solar Reflectance Index for a minimum of 75% of 
the roof surface area 

•Shading surface parking spaces using vegeta on. 

•Landscaping and stormwater management that seeks to retain stormwater runoff where 
appropriate and allow it to provide water for landscaping and improve groundwater 
condi ons. 

•Providing open bike parking areas to allow residents an opportunity to have an alterna ve 
mode of transporta on 

 
 
Equipment Screening 
 

The roo op mechanical equipment is screened visually and integral to the architectural design 
of the project buildings. Trash enclosures are fully enclosed with concrete masonry unit (“CMU”) 
block walls and metal gates. Screening will be accomplished through loca on, orienta on and 
use of landscaping to the maximum extent possible while s ll providing ease of access to 
residents and collec on services. Meter bank installa on will be guided in accordance with SRP, 
Tempe Water, and Southwest Gas standards and by the goals of minimizing their visual impact 
through loca on, minimizing exposed conduit and pan ng of conduit, landscape screening where 
prac cal and to the maximum extent feasible. 
 
 
Landscaping 
 

The overall landscape theme of Town Commons is inspired by the Sonoran Desert style pale e 
to create an a rac ve experience for residents and visitors alike. The design and materials create 
a sense of place within the site, while adding a fresh approach to a meless desert environment 
for the surrounding community. All plant species proposed adhere to the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources, “Low Water Use Plant List” in order to promote water efficiency stewardship 
and incorporate na ve vegeta on into the landscape environment. Site landscape will be 
irrigated by means of a low volume drip irriga on system that u lizes moisture sensing and 
weather‐based technology. 
 

The landscaping theme draws from the lush desert look and feel of an adapted Sonoran 
landscape, cra ed for the Arizona climate through the use of drought tolerant and na ve 
adapted elements. The use of Oaks and Elms along Avenida Del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road create 
an invi ng street frontage, providing a shady haven for all public users. These classic street trees 
will be complemented with large massings of colorful shrubs, accents and groundcovers. Trees 
along Avenida Del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road will be planted an average of 30’ on center. 
 
Plant material and loca on has been carefully considered. Plant material included is within the 
latest amended edi on of the "Low‐Water‐Using Plant List" approved by the Director of the 
Phoenix Ac ve Management Area of the Arizona Department of Water Resources. All trees shall 

27



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 10 of 13 

comply with the latest amended edi on of the "Arizona Nursery Associa on — Recommended 
Tree Specifica ons”. All plant material will meet the applicable minimum plan ng sizes and 
spacing required by the Town with spacing sufficient to allow plants to reach their natural mature 
size and form. Plant massing, coverage and density requirements of the Town are met for parking 
areas, common open space/reten on basins; intersec on setback areas; landscape setback 
areas; other perimeter landscape strips and rights‐of‐way. The grouping of plant species 
commonly found together in natural associa ons or of common environmental requirements 
(soil type, water, sun exposure, temperature limita ons, etc.) has been considered throughout 
the Project design. 
 

Landscaping is designed and will be installed and maintained in accordance with the Town’s 
stated basic principles of xeriscaping. Water features are placed only within small‐scale 
pedestrian/oriented places. Water feature designs reduce evapora on losses. Town Commons 
uses landscaping design to incorporate energy conserva on measures by shading of south and 
west sides of building by overhangs and/or trees and the provision of shade trees on the south 
and west side of streets. 
 
 
Signage 
 

The main entry to Town Commons buildings will have iden fying signage in a well‐landscaped 
se ng. Site directories are located at common access points for viewing by pedestrians and 
people in vehicles. Paving treatments are used at entryways, crosswalks and amenity areas. 
 
 
Property Management 
 

As a comprehensive and fully ver cally integrated real estate development services company, 
The Richman Group (“TRG”) maintains its own property management division internal to the 
company. TRG Management is a premier manager of mul family apartment communi es across 
the United States, with over 160,000 residen al units currently under their care.  
 

The Town expects TRG Management to create an excep onal living environment at Town 
Commons, in all areas of Property Management, including marke ng, training, financial 
repor ng, construc on management and maintenance to present an ‘A’ class property that the 
en re community will be proud to showcase.  
 
 
Grading and Drainage Summary 
 

Project parcels are planned to retain on‐site stormwater onsite as prescribed by the Town for the 
100‐year, 2‐hour storm event. Runoff generated by the new development will meet the 
applicable water quality standards imposed by the Town. Stormwater will be retained onsite are 
either in surface ponds or underground storage tanks. All reten on facili es designed will dispose 

28



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 11 of 13 

of stormwater via drywells. All finished floor eleva ons for new buildings will be set according to 
Town of Guadalupe requirements. 
 
 
U li es Summary 
 

Electrical transformers or other ground mounted u lity equipment will be painted to match the 
building to blend in with the Project architecture and landscaping. 
 

The Project will not adversely affect municipal or private facili es and services. Similarly, it will 
not have an adverse effect on exis ng or future public and private open space, recrea on, 
schools, or library facili es.  
 

The following list iden fies public and private services for the Property: 
 

Water: City of Tempe 
Sewer: City of Tempe 
Electric: SRP 
Gas: Southwest Gas 
School District: Chandler Unified School District 
Police: Maricopa County Sherriff 
Fire: Town of Guadalupe 

 
All new buildings will be served by private onsite water and sewer facili es. Domes c water and 
fire suppression services will be provided to each building from a looped onsite system that 
connects to exis ng facili es in Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui. Sanitary sewer services 
to each new building are planned as provided from private main extensions onsite that connect 
to the exis ng public main in Guadalupe Road. Dry u lity services are planned to connect to 
adjacent facili es located in the surrounding public roads. 
 
 
Phasing Plan 
 

Town Commons will be constructed in three dis nct phases. Arterial road frontages, landscaping 
and streetscape will be installed in conjunc on with onsite development. 
 
 
Summary 
 

The proposed PAD and Preliminary Development Plan conform with and promote the goals and 
objec ves of the Town of Guadalupe Long‐Range Plan, and will provide a modern, affordable 
residen al community for the Town. The Town Commons project will be a great complementary 
asset to the surrounding uses and represent the highest and best use for this currently vacant 
Property.  

29



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 12 of 13 

Exhibit A 
Vicinity map of the proper es 

 

“A” in the image below is APN 301‐06‐373 (approx. 2.80 acres) 

“B” in the image below is APN 301‐12‐121 (approx. 0.34 acres) 

“C” in the image below is APN 301‐12‐113 (approx. 0.65 acres) 
 
 

 
 
  

C

A

B

30



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 13 of 13 

Exhibit B 
 

Preliminary Development Plan 
 

 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



9050 AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 

150FT NOTIFICATION AREA 

 

 

45



JOSE BOJORQUEZ 
5740 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ROSALIO MATUS 
5611 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JOE GARZA RUIZ 
5615 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN CONCEPCION FLORES 
5619 E MEXICO ST 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

LADISLADO FLORES 
5621 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

LISA GUTIERREZ 
5627 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MANUEL RALPH BARROS JR 
5629 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DAVID MYERS 
5441 E CALLE SAN ANGELO 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ALEX CAMPOY PADEREZ 
9010 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ROSA VALENZUELA 
4720 W CALLE TETAKUSIM 

TUCSON AZ USA 85757 

ESTEBAN NAVARETTE 
9244 S CALLE MARAVILLA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

REGGY LAKE 
9014 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

LENORE YAZZIE 
9028 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

CRUZ PORRAS 
PO BOX 20186 

PHOENIX AZ USA 85036 

JESUS LEON 
9024 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

GILBERT LOPEZ 
9034 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JOSE LUCIO ORTEGA 
9038 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAMON GUZMAN 
PO BOX 11776 

TEMPE AZ USA 85284 

CARLOS SAMANIEGO 
9006 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

EDWARDO COTA JR 
518 N SANTA BARBARA 

MESA AZ USA 85201 

DANIEL TORRES 
9034 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ASCEND CHURCH 
1615 E GUADALUPE RD 

TEMPE AZ USA 85285 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

HENRY LOPEZ 
9020 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

SUZUKI REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
12010 S EQUESTRIAN TRL 
PHOENIX AZ USA 85044 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAMON GUZMAN 
PO BOX 11776 

TEMPE AZ USA 85284 

RAMON GUZMAN 
PO BOX 11776 

TEMPE AZ USA 85284 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

9050 AVENIDA DEL YAQUI MAILING LABELS 46



 

Town of Guadalupe
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
(480) 730 3080

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

The Guadalupe Town Council shall hold public hearings on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to consider 
the following rezoning request: 

 
Rezoning Application (RZ2024-01) – 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe, as the 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the property located at 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County 
Assessor parcel #301-06-373 comprising approximately 2.80 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned R1-9 
Single Family Residential to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN 
COMMONS project, comprised of 132 family-oriented affordable rental units in two phases. Buildings will be 
set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD 
development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 60 units per 
acre. Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD application. 

 
 

Written letters of objection or support may be submitted by adjacent landowners and potentially affected 
citizens to the Town Clerk via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall prior to, 
or at the time of the hearing. Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall. 

47



Date: February 2, 2024 

From: Sam Amaya, Town Planner, samaya@guadalupeaz.org 

Through:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, jkulaga@guadalupeaz.org 

To: The Honorable Guadalupe Town Council 

Re: RZ2024-01, Rezoning of Town Owned Land (APN 301-06-373) Staff Report 

Introduc�on 

The Town is the owner of the currently vacant property located at 9050 S. Avenida Del Yaqui 
designated APN 301-06-373, zoned R1-9 in the Town and comprising approximately 2.80 acres at 
the NE corner of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui.   The Town is advancing this rezoning 
request of the subject property to facilitate the new development of affordable mul�-family 
housing. 

Vicinity Map 

48



History 

The subject property �tle was conveyed to the Town of Guadalupe by deed dated July 10, 2008.  
In 2009, the subject property was included in a final judgement by the Superior Court of the State 
of Arizona in the mater of the Charitable Trust of the Biehn Colony Trust, Inc.  The Court’s Final 
Judgment dated March 31, 1999, is atached here, as Exhibit A along with its own Exhibits “B&E”. 

Item #4 on page 2 of the judgment relates directly to use of the northeast corner 3-acre 
property, where: 

“The Town is free to develop the remaining Biehn Colony property described on Exhibit B as it sees 
fit free of any of the restrictions set forth in this Judgement or any prior orders on this Court.” 

On December 9, 2022, the Town issued a Request for Proposals seeking proposals for the future 
development of the subject property.  Respondents with team capability, previous experience, 
financial acumen and resources, and a reasonable method of approach were sought.  Three 
qualified responses were received before the response deadline.  The three respondents were 
the Guadalupe Community Development Corpora�on (“GCDC”), B&B Development & 
Construc�on (“B&B”), and The Richman Group (“TRG”). 

Here is a summary table of data included in the RFP responses received: 

  RESPONDENT    DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED          ASSETS UNDER PROPERTY 
 CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT          MANAGEMENT OFFER (all sites) 

  INCLUDED    

  GCDC NO 5 SF Homes, 2-story          65 Senior Units  $360K  
   Team of 1 $1M est. value           72 Family Units Close in 90 days 

         126 SF Homes 
         Would pursue Town provides lot 

funding   splits 

  B&B NO Retail/Commercial Building.       9 SF Homes $2.21M 
   Team of 2 40-unit “workforce” housing.     1 retail loca�on

$8M est. value          $25M in Managed No Role for Town 
construc�on 

  TRG YES 3,000 s.f. New Retail  12,000 “affordable” $3.95M for Land 
    Team of 17 5,000 s.f. Community Space units   (equal to Town’s 

88 “affordable” MFH Units           166,000+ units   appraised value)  
60 “affordable” Senior Units 
82 Homes  $20B in financed Town included in 
New “Town Square” development        project planning 
$98M est. value ($6.1M in  
   community uses 

49



A�er review and considera�on of the proposals, an award was made by the Town Council in a 
regular public mee�ng on March 9, 2023, to enter into exclusive nego�a�ons with The Richman 
Group for a Development Agreement comprising the subject property.  This Development 
Agreement has been submited for concurrent review and considera�on by the Town Council 
along with this rezoning request.  

This rezoning and the Development Agreement, if approved, may result in a The Richman Group 
comple�ng a compe��ve applica�on to the State Department of Housing for award of project tax 
credits or other funding support for their proposed mul�family project in three dis�nct phases. 
This rezoning will help support these compe��ve applica�on efforts. 

Requirements for Approval of this Rezoning Request 

Because this is Town Owned property, the $400 filing fee for this rezoning has been waived per 
Town Code § 154.036.B.3.   

Per code Sec�on § 154.030 AMENDMENTS, the regulations and boundaries set forth in the 
chapter PROCEDURES may be amended, supplemented, changed, modified, or repealed 
whenever deemed necessary to best serve the public interest, health, comfort, safety, and 
general welfare of the citizens of the town.  Accordingly, this applica�on will defer the code 
requirement to provide a plot plan and final development plan. Any proposed project will submit 
those design documents for separate review and approval a�er a Development Agreement has 
been finalized, approved and recorded. 

That Development Agreement will iden�fy requirements for any proposed project on this Subject 
Property to be designed with the community’s history and culture in mind, and with the needs of 
current and future residents, and ar�culated through subsequent submital of plans for review.   

This rezoning is a first step in the process of developing a project, by first establishing the 
applicable development standards to which any mul�-family project designer must conform. 

PAD Development Standards 

The Town’s Zoning Ordinance iden�fies the underlying zoning and related development standards 
for land within the Town’s corporate limits.  Per Code § 154.068 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT 
(PAD), PAD zoning is described as: 

(A) Intent. The PAD District is intended and designed to: provide a means for development on a
unit basis, ensuring orderly and thorough planning that will result in high quality urban
design; encourage variety in architectural design through techniques, including, but not

50



limited to, variations in building style, lot arrangements, and site planning; establish 
procedures that would reduce inequities occurring when strict application of zoning 
regulations pertaining primarily to small lots are applied to large lots; encourage innovative 
site planning, including, but not limited to, the preservation of natural character of the land 
and economy in construction and maintenance of streets and utilities; permit flexibility in 
design such that development would produce maximum choice in the type of environment, 
living units, commercial installations, and facilities available to the public; and produce an 
efficient, aesthetic, and desirable use of open space. 

This rezoning proposes the following development standards for the subject property’s PAD 
zoning:  

Current R1-9 Zoning This PAD Request 

Maximum Height: 30 feet  54 Feet 

Density:  9,000 s.f for each DU 61.0 DU/Acre 

Parking:  Minimum 1.0 spaces per Minimum 1.25 per dwelling unit 
   efficiency unit 
Minimum 1.5 spaces per 
   each 1 and 2 bedroom unit 
Minimum 2.0 spaces per 
each unit containing  
more than 2 bedrooms 

Setbacks: 

Building Setbacks 

i. Guadalupe Road: 30-foot  (front) 18-foot (minimum 6-foot sidewalk
10-foot  (side) and 8-foot landscape strip)

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui:  30-foot  (front) 18-foot (minimum 6-foot sidewalk
10-foot  (side) and 8-foot landscape strip)

iii. Property Lines
adjacent to exis�ng
residen�al uses, 10-foot  (side)
inclusive of alleys: 10-foot (rear) 20-foot

Landscape Setbacks 

i. Guadalupe Road: 30-foot  (front) Landscape setback widths vary 
20-foot  (side)
10-foot (rear) The streetscape standard is  

51



measured at 18 feet from face of 
curb. 

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui Rd.: 30-foot (front) Landscape setback widths vary 

20-foot (side) A minimum 6-foot wide public      
10-foot (rear) sidewalk is provided along Avenida 

Del Yaqui to accommodate the  
exis�ng right-of-way. 

The streetscape standard is  
measured at 18 feet from face of 
curb. 

Preliminary Development Plan 

A preliminary plan for development is atached here as Exhibit B.  This plan will be advanced to a 
final plan for development through the development process of community outreach, planning 
and design.  The final plan for development, comprising but not limited to a site plan, open space 
plan, circula�on plan, and plans for provision of u�li�es, public art, and offsite improvements will 
be reviewed and approved separately from this rezoning ac�on through the Town’s normal plan 
review and permi�ng processes.  This requirement has been reiterated in the staff’s 
recommended zoning s�pula�ons in the final sec�on of this report. 

Conformance with General Plan 

Currently, the Town has a Council-approved Masterplan plan that has served as a precursor 
document to a General Plan as defined by ARS 9-461.05.  That document was adopted by Town 
Council on January 2, 2004 and provides guidance for future development, including: 

Overall Goals – Four are described in the plan 
o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town
o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town
o Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance Economic Development
o Improve Quality of Life

This proposed PAD conforms to the long-range plan in the following ways: 

o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town
By creating opportunities for new and affordable housing, Guadalupe residents who are
seeking modern construction and amenities will have additional choices to remain in Town,
close to relatives and within the community they call home, at an affordable price.

52



o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town & Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance
Economic Development
These underutilized properties, when successfully transitioned into residential communities,
can help promote the further diversification of the Town’s retail tax base by encouraging
private sector investment into new retail uses - thereby helping to resolve the Town’s current
structural deficit and ensuring the continuation of municipal services.

o Improve Quality of Life
There is a demonstrated need for new, affordable housing in the Town.

No�fica�on for this Rezoning 

No�ces have occurred in accordance with Guadalupe zoning ordinance §154.034 NOTIFICATION. 
Exhibit C illustrates a map of the no�fica�on area.  

Atached in Exhibit D includes all no�fica�on materials posted, including: 
o Site posting
o Site posting notice
o Notice in newspaper
o Mailing list
o Mailing notice

Exhibit E includes all writen emails and or leters received for this project from the public since 
January 24, 2024, the first day of statutory no�fica�on. 

Legal Descrip�on  

A legal descrip�on of the property is included in Exhibit A. 

Staff Recommended Condi�ons of Approval 

Per the Town’s Code § 154.030.C.1., any recommendation of approval for an amendment, or any 
adoption of an amendment, may be subject to such conditions as the Council deems applicable 
in order to fully carry out the provisions of this chapter. 

Therefore, if approved, staff recommends these condi�ons of approval, which are taken from the 
current Town Code § 154.068 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD), Paragraph B. Procedure; 
Paragraph C. Plan Requirements; and Paragraph D. Standards, and reiterate the requirements for 
development plan review: 

53



1. The applicant shall submit within one year, a final development plan, which shall consist of a
complete set of drawings and specifications for the proposed use and development. It shall be
reviewed for conformity with the comprehensive plan, and with recognized principles of
architectural design, land use planning, and landscape architecture. The final development plan
also be reviewed for compliance with the PAD standards and substantial compliance with the
preliminary plan. The Council shall review the final development plan for its compliance with the
standards of this chapter and its substantial compliance with the preliminary development plan.

2. The final development plan and final plat shall be approved by the Council and the final plat
duly recorded before any building permit is issued.

3. The Council may give the approval of the development plan contingent upon the completion
of construction and improvements within a reasonable period of time. Failure to complete all
improvements within said period of time shall be deemed sufficient cause for the Council to
rescind the rezoning, unless an extension is requested by the developer or owner and approved
by the Council.

4. The preliminary development plan shall contain at a minimum the following information:
(a) Relationship of the property to the surrounding areas that will be affected by the

proposed PAD;

(b) Proposed pattern of land uses including areas to be conveyed, dedicated, or reserved
for public use.

(c) Schematic site plan for each building site and common open areas, showing the
approximate location of all structures, buildings, and improvements.

5. The final development plan shall contain, where applicable, the following information:
(a) All information contained in the preliminary development plan as refined and revised;

(b) Plans and elevations of all building types;

(c) Schematic grading plans including proposed treatment of slopes and drainage plans;

(d) The number of dwelling units by dwelling type;

(e) Projection of school enrollment generated by the proposed project;

(f) Street and lot patterns and building siting envelopes showing setbacks;

(g) Projection of traffic volumes within PAD and volumes generated by the PAD that will be
added to streets in the vicinity;

(h) Evidence of consultation with affected public agencies, including, but not limited to,
school districts, flood control districts, and coordination with plans of other appropriate
agencies;

54



6. Any agreements to lease the subject property to facilitate development shall describe
maintenance of all interior streets, parking areas, sidewalks, common land, parks and plantings
which have not been dedicated to the town in compliance with the town ordinances; and also a
performance bond or bonds which shall insure to the town that the dedicated public streets,
u�li�es, and other common development facili�es shall be completed by the developer within
the �me specified in the final development plan;

7. The Council may require that open space or screening be located along all or a portion of the
development boundaries.

8. All public streets, water mains, and sanitary sewer and storm sewer facilities shall comply with
appropriate ordinances and specifications of the Town.

9. Spaces for off-street parking and loading shall be provided in accordance with applicable
Town Codes or a related Development Agreement at the time of building permit issuance.

10. Signs, on-site shall be subject to the provisions of applicable Town Codes at the time of
building permit issuance.

55



Exhibit A 
Final Judgement by the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in the mater of the Charitable 

Trust of the Biehn Colony Trust, Inc., dated July 10, 2008. Atached to this document.   
 
 
 
  

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



Exhibit B 
Preliminary Plan for Development  

 

64



 
Exhibit C 

Map of No�fica�on Area 

 

65



Exhibit D 
No�fica�on Materials atached to this document.  

o Site posting proof 
o Site posting 
o Notice in newspaper 
o Mailing list 
o Mailing notice 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66



9050 S. AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 

PUBLIC NOTICE JANUARY 24, 2024 

 

67



68



    
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T H E   R E C O R D   R E P O R T E R

RR#

~SINCE 1914~

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in THE
RECORD REPORTER. Please read this notice carefully and fax or e-mail
(record_reporter@dailyjournal.com) any corrections. The Affidavit will be filed,
if required, and mailed to you after the last date below. Publication date(s) for
this notice is (are):

Mailing Address : 2025 N THIRD ST #155, PHOENIX, AZ 85004-1425
Telephone (602) 417-9900 / Fax (602) 417-9910

Visit us @ www.RecordReporter.com

ROCIO RUIZ
TOWN OF GUADALUPE
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
GUADALUPE, AZ  85283

MCHRG NOTICE OF HEARING

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-01) - 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui

01/24/2024

Publication

Arizona Sales Tax

Total

$3.40

$0.02

$3.42

Notice Type: 

Ad Description

COPY OF NOTICE

3776200

Reference #

(Not an Affidavit of Publication. Do not file.)

Your Legal Publishing

!A000006670676!

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the last
date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive an
invoice.

Notice of Public Hearing The
Guadalupe Town Council shall hold
public hearings on Thursday,
February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South
Avenida del Yaqui, Council
Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to
consider the following rezoning
request: Rezoning Application
(RZ2024-01) – 9050 South Avenida
del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe,
as the Applicant, is requesting to
rezone the property located at 9050
South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa
County Assessor parcel #301-06-373
comprising approximately 2.80 acres)
that is currently vacant and zoned R1-
9 Single Family Residential to
Planned Area Development (PAD) to
facilitate future development of the
TOWN COMMONS project,
comprised of 132 family-oriented
affordable rental units in two phases.
Buildings will be set back a minimum
of 20-feet from existing residential
uses, inclusive of alleys. The
proposed PAD development
standards provide a maximum
building height of 54 feet, and
maximum density of 60 units per acre.
Custom parking and setback
standards are also part of the PAD
application. Written letters of objection
or support may be submitted by
adjacent landowners and potentially
affected citizens to the Town Clerk via
email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or
delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall
prior to, or at the time of the hearing.
Copies of the Application are available
for review at Guadalupe Town Hall.
1/24/24

RR-3776200#

69



JOSE BOJORQUEZ 
5740 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JOE GARZA RUIZ 
5615 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN CONCEPCION FLORES 
5619 E MEXICO ST 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

LISA GUTIERREZ 
5627 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MANUEL RALPH BARROS JR 
5629 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ALEX CAMPOY PADEREZ 
9010 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ROSA VALENZUELA 
4720 W CALLE TETAKUSIM 

TUCSON AZ USA 85757 

REGGY LAKE 
9014 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

LENORE YAZZIE 
9028 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JESUS LEON 
9024 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

GILBERT LOPEZ 
9034 S CALLE BATOUA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAMON GUZMAN 
PO BOX 11776 

TEMPE AZ USA 85284 

CARLOS SAMANIEGO 
9006 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DANIEL TORRES 
9034 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

HENRY LOPEZ 
9020 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAMON GUZMAN 
PO BOX 11776 

TEMPE AZ USA 85284 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ROSALIO MATUS 
5611 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

LADISLADO FLORES 
5621 E CALLE MEXICO 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DAVID MYERS 
5441 E CALLE SAN ANGELO 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ESTEBAN NAVARETTE 
9244 S CALLE MARAVILLA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

CRUZ PORRAS 
PO BOX 20186 

PHOENIX AZ USA 85036 

JOSE LUCIO ORTEGA 
9038 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

EDWARDO COTA JR 
518 N SANTA BARBARA 

MESA AZ USA 85201 

ASCEND CHURCH 
1615 E GUADALUPE RD 

TEMPE AZ USA 85285 

SUZUKI REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
12010 S EQUESTRIAN TRL 
PHOENIX AZ USA 85044 

RAMON GUZMAN 
PO BOX 11776 

TEMPE AZ USA 85284 

9050 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI MAILING LABELS 70



 

Town of Guadalupe
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
(480) 730 3080

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

The Guadalupe Town Council shall hold public hearings on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to consider 
the following rezoning request: 

 
Rezoning Application (RZ2024-01) – 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe, as the 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the property located at 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County 
Assessor parcel #301-06-373 comprising approximately 2.80 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned R1-9 
Single Family Residential to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the TOWN 
COMMONS project, comprised of 132 family-oriented affordable rental units in two phases. Buildings will be 
set back a minimum of 20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD 
development standards provide a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 60 units per 
acre. Custom parking and setback standards are also part of the PAD application. 

 
 

Written letters of objection or support may be submitted by adjacent landowners and potentially affected 
citizens to the Town Clerk via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall prior to, 
or at the time of the hearing. Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall. 

71



Exhibit E 
All writen emails and leters received for this project from the public since January 24, 2024. 

o Myers letter, January 25, 2024 
o Villegas letter, January 25, 2024 

72



David A. Myers
 Priest – Attorney

Guadalupe Law Center
5441 E. Calle San Angelo

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
480-838-3143

davidamyers@mindspring.com
January 25, 2024

Guadalupe Town Council
by Email

Re: Town Commons Project

Dear Mayor and Council Members,

My name is David A. Myers.  I am the owner of land parcel 301-06-372B, which is adjacent to
the proposed development parcel (301-06-370) at the southeast corner.  

I received notice of the proposed zoning change yesterday morning, January 24, 2024, by means
of a sign being posted on the property.  This is not sufficient time for the statutory notice. I am
sorry I cannot attend your meeting, but I already had other duties planned for that time.

From reviewing the proposal on the internet, I believe the Town, on behalf of Richman Group, is
asking the Town to change the zoning from R-1-9 to C-4 (also referred to as PAD).  C-4, PAD is
not defined.  Page 7, article 5 grants Richman Group the right to change the requirements by 10%
with administrative approval of the Town.    I believe C-4, PAD should be fully defined and that
changes should go through the Town Council. 

I believe the proposed population density is excessive.  The proposal has 132 apartments on the
northeast corner lot.   That would mean that approximately 525 people would live there.  About
250 vehicles would park there.  Excessive population would very likely result in physical and
mental illnesses.

The proposal calls for apartment buildings of 4 stories or 2 stories in height.  It states that they
can go to 54 ft. high.  I believe 2 stories should be the maximum.

I believe there should be use of solar energy–both for heating water and for electricity.  The
proposal does not include this.

If there is construction, will preference be given to Guadalupe residents to do the work?  The
Town council has repeatedly said that the Town should hire residents. 

The setbacks should be from the closest edge of an alley and a walk-way.

73

mailto:David.Myers@azbar.org


Ownership is a major issue.  Apparently Richman Group will be given ownership of the whole
project forever.   
      The entire area was given, free, by Mrs. Jenny Biehn for “Yaqui Indian home sites.”  In the
Olivas case, the court changed it to “Yaqui Indians, Mexican Americans, or persons of any other
race who are poor and in need of a home site.”    
       The Town got the land free from the Biehn Colony board. I do not believe this was lawful.  
I believe the land, or the apartments, should be given to the people, free, which is what Mrs.
Biehn intended.

What about diversity?  Federal law does not allow prejudice.  This is especially true if Federal
money is involved.   Most of the public housing in Guadalupe now goes to Yaqui people and
Mexican-American people.  Therefore most of this project would have to be rented to people of
other races.  This would destroy the culture of Guadalupe.

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute my ideas.

David A. Myers

74



75



76



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283   (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 1 of 5

1. Please complete this application and attach all required items as outlined.
2. Once submitted, please allow a minimum of two weeks for staff to review and determine whether

submittal is complete or additional information/material is needed.
3. Once application is determined complete and acceptable, staff will schedule a public hearing.
4. Complete/accepted application must be submitted to the Town Clerk in final form no less than 30 days prior to

scheduled Town council meeting. Applicant must attend all public hearings/meetings.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

Project name: 

Existing use of property:  

Proposed use of property: 

Existing zoning:   Requested zoning (if applicable):

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Address:

Legal Description*: Section Township Range

Maricopa County Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)*: 

Subdivision Name & Lot # (if applicable/available)   

*Available at: https://mcassessor.maricopa.gov/

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

Name:   

Mailing Address:

Contact phone #:   Email:

Status (owner, agent, lessee, etc): 

APPLICATION MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING (per Town Code 154.036): 

Filing fee(s) (as outlined on page 2) – attach

Legal description – attach

Letter of explanation – complete page 3

Plot plan – attach

Site plan (drawn to scale, showing what is planned for the property, including lot dimensions, existing and proposed buildings,
etc.) – attach

Vicinity map of property owners within 150’ of property – attach

Mailing labels (Name/Address) for property owners within 150’ of property – attach

Proof of property ownership

PLANNING & ZONING APPLICATION
FOR: VARIANCE, CONDITIONAL USE OR ZONING CHANGE

Town Commons (B)

Vacant

Multi-Family Residential

C-1 PAD

9080 S Avenida del Yaqui 

301-12-121

1S 4E5

Town of Guadalupe

   9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui

(480)-730-3080

Owner

WAIVED

DEF

DEF

clerk@guadalupeaz.org

(NW Corner / 0.34 acres / Lot B)

77



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283 (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 2 of 5 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  

______CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  

______VARIANCE FOR (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):

______Lot width ______Lot depth ______Building height

______Front setback ______Rear setback ______Sideyard setback

______ZONING CHANGE – AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP FOR:

______Single-family Residential 

______Multi-family Residential, Commercial, or Industrial Districts

______Planned Area Development 

PROPERTY OWNER: (If different from Applicant, complete the Property Owner Authorization statement below. Property owner’s 

signature must be notarized. For more than one owner, attach a separate sheet with notarized signatures, names and addresses.)

 Email:

to file this application and act on my behalf in 

Name: N/A

Mailing Address:

Phone #:  

PROPERTY OWNER AUTHORIZATION:

I hereby authorize  

regard to this application. 

 (Signature) (Date)

(Notary Public)

The State of County of 
Subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me by  , the principal, 
and subscribed and sworn to me by  , the witness, this _______day of 
_________________(month), ________(year). 

(signed) 

Notary (Rezoning Applications Only)

X

X

78



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283  (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 3 of 5 

LETTER OF EXPLANATION:

Briefly describe the nature and intent of the proposed development and reasons justifying the request. Include references to effects on 

surrounding neighborhoods and the town at large.  

FEE SCHEDULE: 

Type of Application Fee Calculate Fees

Appeals of administrative decisions $25 

Site plan review application $50 

Amendments to the Zoning Map for: 

Continued items, continued at the request of the applicant after 
the property has been posted and public hearing notices are 
mailed 

$25 

Multi-family residential, commercial and industrial districts $400 

Planned area development $400 

Single-family residential $100 

Site plan review application $50 + $25/acre for 
each acre over one 

Conditional Use Permits 

Manufactured homes $50 

All other $50 

Variances 

Single-family residential $50 

All other $50 

TOTAL 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE: 

 (Signature)  (Date) 

View attached project narrative dated January 15, 2024. 

$0

$400

Waived

79



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283 (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 4 of 5 

STAFF USE ONLY 

Town of Guadalupe Review Process 

Case#  

Zoning District:  

Date of Application:  

Fee:  

Accepted by:  

Date Application Deemed Acceptable by Staff: 

Date of Legal Advertisement:   

Date(s) of Public Hearing(s):   

Council Decision:   

80



Town of Guadalupe          9241 South Avenida del Yaqui           Guadalupe, AZ 85283      services@guadalupeaz.org         (480) 730-3080 08/02/2022      5 of 5

RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – TOWN CODE §154.066 (E) (1) & (2)

MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS

Zoning 
District

Minimum Lot Area per 
D.U. First 2 D.U.

Minimum Lot Area 
per D.U. 

Add’l D.U.

Minimum 
Lot Width

Front Side Street Side Rear Maximum 
Building Height

R-2 5,000 square feet 75’ 25’ 7’* 20’ 20’ 30’

R-3 5,000 square feet 2,500 square feet 100’ 20’ 7’* 15’ 15’ 30’

R-4 5,000 square feet 1,250 square feet 100’ 20’ 7’* 15’ 15’ 30’

*For ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side.

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

Zoning District MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS Maximum Height

Front Side Street Side Rear

R-1-9 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’

R-1-6 25’ 7’ 15’ 10’ 30’

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – TOWN CODE §154.067(F)

Zoning District MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS Maximum Height

Front Side Street Side Rear

C-1 25’ 12’ 15’ 15’ 30’

C-2 20’ 12’ 15’ 15’ 30’

C-Mix 30’ 20’ 30’ 30’ 40’

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

TOWN OF GUADALUPE – ZONING CODE SETBACK REQUIREMENTSTOWN OF GUADALUPE – ZONING CODE SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

81



North 

Vicinity map of properties

“A” in the image below is APN 301-06-373 (approx. 2.80 acres) 
“B” in the image below is APN 301-12-121 (approx. 0.34 acres) 
“C” in the image below is APN 301-12-113 (approx. 0.65 acres) 

82



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 1 of 13 

 

PAD PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 

Town Commons 
 

Rezoning CASE Nos. RZ2024‐01, RZ2024‐02 and RZ2024‐03 
 

Submi al: January 15, 2024 
 

 

 
Project Loca on: NEC and NWC of 
Guadalupe Road & Avenida Del Yaqui 

  APNs 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 

83



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 2 of 13 

 
Project Overview 
 

On December 9, 2022, the Town issued a Request for Proposals seeking a development partner 
for the future development of vacant Town‐owned proper es at the corner of Guadalupe Road 
and Avenida Del Yaqui. Respondents with team capability, previous experience, financial acumen 
and resources, and a reasonable method of approach were sought.   
 

A er review and considera on of the proposals, an award was made by the Town Council in a 
regular public mee ng on March 9, 2023, to enter into exclusive nego a ons with The Richman 
Group for a Development Agreement comprising the subject property.  This Development 
Agreement has been submi ed for concurrent review and considera on by the Town Council 
along with this rezoning request.  
 
This rezoning and the Development Agreement, if approved, may result in a The Richman Group 
comple ng a compe ve applica on to the State Department of Housing for award of project tax 
credits or other funding support for their proposed mul family project in three dis nct phases. 
This rezoning will help support these compe ve applica on efforts. 
 
Town staff is making this rezoning request as representa ves of the Town to facilitate this future 
development.  A vicinity map of the proper es is a ached here as Exhibit A.  As further described 
in the concurrent Development Agreement, The Richman Group proposes to lease the subject 
proper es to develop affordable housing projects on the subject proper es in three separate 
phases, both comprising the “Town Commons” project. 
 
Two Phases of Town Commons, on the NEC of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui, will consist 
of nearly 132 family‐oriented affordable rental units – 68 and 64 units respec vely.  Phase two 
of Town Commons, on the NWC of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui, will consist of 60 
affordable homes for seniors. 
 
The Town Commons will create an intergenera onal community in three developments to serve 
neighbors seeking to con nue living in Guadalupe as they age, and residents who need accessible 
rent to grow deeper roots with their family.  
 
The proposed project has the poten al to help the Town overcome its growing structural deficit 
by increasing the poten al for resident spending, thereby suppor ng local retail businesses that 
contribute transac on taxes in support of General Fund services residents have come to expect 
and deserve.    
 
The loca on of the project phases at the intersec on of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui 
provides the poten al for posi ve advancement of community art, architecture and resident 
ac vity at the most frequently travelled intersec on in our community. 
 
 

84



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 3 of 13 

Summary of Request 

The Town is the owner of the currently vacant proper es designated as APN numbers 301‐06‐373 
(zoned “R1‐9” in the Town and comprising approximately 2.80 acres); 301‐12‐121 (zoned “C‐1” in 
the Town and comprising approximately 0.34 acres); and 301‐12‐113 (zoned “C‐1” in the Town 
comprising approximately 0.65 acres) at the NE and SW corners of Guadalupe Road and Avenida 
Del Yaqui.   The Town is advancing this rezoning of the subject proper es to facilitate new 
development of mul ‐family housing. 

Rela onship to Adjacent Proper es 

The following table describes the uses, zoning and General Plan designa on for the proper es 
immediately adjacent to the subject proper es. 

Direc on Surrounding Uses Zoning  

North Residen al, Commercial C‐1, R1‐9 and R1‐6 

East Residen al R1‐9  

South Residen al, Commercial 
Civic Center C‐1, R1‐9 and R1‐6 

West Residen al R1‐6 

Conformance with General Plan 

Currently, the Town has a Council‐approved Master Plan that has served as a precursor 
document to a General Plan as defined by ARS 9‐461.05.  That document was adopted by Town 
Council on January 2, 2004, and provides guidance for future development, including: 

Overall Goals – Four are described in the plan 
o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town
o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town
o Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance Economic Development
o Improve Quality of Life

85



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 4 of 13 

This proposed PAD conforms to the long‐range plan in the following ways: 
 

o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
By creating opportunities for new and affordable housing, Guadalupe residents who are 
seeking modern construction and amenities will have additional choices to remain in Town, 
close to relatives and within the community they call home, at an affordable price. 

 

o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town & Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance 
Economic Development 
These underutilized properties, when successfully transitioned into residential communities, 
can help promote the further diversification of the Town’s retail tax base by encouraging 
private sector investment into new retail uses ‐ thereby helping to resolve the Town’s current 
structural deficit and ensuring the continuation of municipal services. 
 

o Improve Quality of Life 
There is a demonstrated need for new, affordable housing in the Town.   

 

 
 

 

 

86



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 5 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
Permi ed Uses 
 

All uses permi ed in the R‐4 Mul ‐Family Residen al District of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning 
Ordinance are permi ed with a residen al density of up to 60.0 units per acre for the NEC 
property (APN number 301‐06‐373 comprising approximately 2.80 acres); and 61.0 units per acre 
for the NWC proper es (APN numbers 301‐12‐121 & 301‐12‐113, comprising approximately 0.99 
acres). In addi on, up to 10,000 square feet of retail uses as iden fied in § 154.067.C. and  
154.067.D. ,COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS, are allowed across the phases of Town Commons.  All office 
uses are also allowed including professional, business, execu ve and all other office uses up to 
10,000 square feet for the phases of Town Commons. Live/work units are allowed. This PAD and 
Preliminary Development Plan establish the applicable development standards and design 
guidelines for the Property. 
 
 
PAD Development Standards 
 

All development standards in the C‐2 zoning district of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance 
shall apply on the Property, except as provided herein. In the event of a conflict between a 
provision of this applica on and a provision of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance, this 
applica on shall prevail. 
 

Density 
 

This amended PAD and accompanying PDP will allow the Property a maximum residen al 
density of 61.0 units per net acres across the Property and an overall density of 20.0 units 
per net acre across the original PAD Proper es. 
 
Building Height 

No building shall exceed 54 feet. 

87



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 6 of 13 

 
Streetscape Standards (from face of curb): 
 

i. Guadalupe Road: 18‐foot (minimum 6‐foot sidewalk and 8‐foot landscape strip) 

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui: 18‐foot (minimum 6‐foot sidewalk and 8‐foot landscape strip) 
 
Building Setback 

iii. Property Lines adjacent to exis ng Residen al uses, inclusive of alleys: 20 foot 
 
 
Parking 
 

The Project will incorporate surface parking and tuck‐under garages. As part of the visitor 
surface parking spaces at the main entry, the development will provide ridesharing 
loading/unloading parking spaces. The development may also provide several electrical 
charging sta ons for the residents. 
 
The parking will be well‐lit and landscaped to support a ground level experience in keeping 
with the standards of a high‐quality residen al community. Surface parking is set back at 
least 20 feet from all right‐of‐way lines. 
 
The Town currently requires the following parking: 

i. Minimum 1.0 parking spaces per efficiency unit 

ii. Minimum 1.5 parking spaces per each 1 and 2 bedroom unit 

iii. Minimum 2.0 parking spaces per each unit containing more than 2 bedrooms 
 

Each Project will provide the following parking: 

i. Minimum 1.25 parking spaces per dwelling unit for Phases 1 and 2 

ii. Minimum 0.5 parking spaces per dwelling unit for Phase 3 
 

 
Private Open Space 
 

The Town Commons project provides ameni es in its passive and ac ve recrea on areas. 
Open space areas are well integrated throughout the Project. On‐site ameni es provide an 
equal and balanced distribu on of recrea on for resident access. The type and quan ty of 
furnishings, hardscape and ac ve recrea on elements vary, depending upon the loca on 
within the project and type of experience programmed. 

 
 
 

88



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 7 of 13 

 
Devia ons 
 

The following include iden fied devia ons from code requirements for mul family housing, 
and provided Project design elements will replace contradic ng city standards: 
 
1. Landscape setback widths vary as iden fied above. 

 
2. A minimum 6‐foot wide public sidewalk is provided along Avenida Del Yaqui to 
accommodate the exis ng right‐of‐way. 
 
3. The streetscape standard is measured at 18 feet from face of curb. 
 
4. Building height is at 54 feet. 
 
5.  Minor  Modifica ons  for  Town  Commons:  Minor modifica ons shall be processed 
through an administra ve review by The Town Manager or designee. Modifica ons may 
include a 10% devia on to any approved development standard, including but not limited to 
required building setbacks, required streetscape dimensions, parking, density, building 
height, etc. 

 
 
Preliminary Development Plan 
 

A preliminary plan for development is a ached here as Exhibit B.  This plan will be advanced to a 
final plan for development through the development process of community outreach, planning 
and design.  The final plan for development, comprising but not limited to a site plan, open space 
plan, circula on plan, and plans for provision of u li es, public art, and offsite improvements will 
be reviewed and approved separately from this rezoning ac on through the Town’s normal plan 
review and permi ng processes.   
 
 
Architecture 
 

The Town Commons apartments are proposed as a comfortable urban architecture that takes 
references from the Town’s long history and tradi ons. Building on the transi on in the 
surrounding neighborhood toward this safe, clean and friendly environment, the architecture is 
proposed as an modern character of clean lines, open floor plans and a connec on to the 
outdoors, both visually and physically, providing a high design aesthe c. 
 

The overall architectural character for the development should respond to a regional awareness 
and history of the southwest and Arizona both visually and environmentally by: (1) 
acknowledging climate and solar considera ons; (2) u lizing natural light as much as possible; (3) 
using ver cal scale for contrast and importance; (4) choosing appropriate forms and materials; 

89



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 8 of 13 

(5) u lizing landscape materials to provide con nuity and aesthe cs; and (6) building a posi ve 
iden ty through a “sense of place” and architecture. 
 

An observer of the project on any side would note any expanse of building wall is broken up by a 
combina on of height and depth ar cula on, material changes, window and building openings, 
color, light and shadow control, and landscaping with upper, mid and pedestrian level treatments 
to create a visually interes ng and elegant design aesthe c in harmony with desert living. 
 

The project architecture and theming elements are carried into the amenity areas. Maintaining 
human scale building propor ons along street frontages create visual interest. Indoor spaces are 
integrated with outdoor spaces through a rac ve breezeways and project landscaping. 
 
 
Building Material/Color 
 

Accessory structures should be of similar architectural design and constructed of compa ble 
materials. Low reflec ve materials, textures, and colors should be used to reduce solar radia on. 
Choose colors which relate well to one another, to the proposed buildings and landscape 
materials and which are appropriate to the architecture and surrounding. 
 
 
Sustainability 
 

The Town Commons Apartments are designed with a focus on a range of sustainable 
considera ons to provide green building opportuni es for the development through building 
orienta on/loca on, shading, window design, building mechanics, conserva on of energy and 
water. 
 
The following are sustainable prac ces that are integrated into the Project: 
 

•Reusing a vacant infill property for the proposed mul ‐family development 

•Responding to the harsh southwest climate by incorpora ng materials and design method 
suitable for the region 

•Recognizing the value of human comfort zones and providing appropriate landscaping and 
adequate shading 

•Installing energy efficiency, Low E windows 

•Providing low vola le organic (VOC) paints, carpet and flooring 

•Providing light emi ng diode (LED) and energy efficient ligh ng technology within units, 
site, and parking ligh ng 

•Providing low flow plumbing fixtures to reduce water usage 

•Installing a minimum of 3 Energy Star rated ceiling fans. 

•Installing Energy Star rated hot water heater. 

•Providing high efficiency HVAC units 

90



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 9 of 13 

•Using roofing materials that specify a high Solar Reflectance Index for a minimum of 75% of 
the roof surface area 

•Shading surface parking spaces using vegeta on. 

•Landscaping and stormwater management that seeks to retain stormwater runoff where 
appropriate and allow it to provide water for landscaping and improve groundwater 
condi ons. 

•Providing open bike parking areas to allow residents an opportunity to have an alterna ve 
mode of transporta on 

 
 
Equipment Screening 
 

The roo op mechanical equipment is screened visually and integral to the architectural design 
of the project buildings. Trash enclosures are fully enclosed with concrete masonry unit (“CMU”) 
block walls and metal gates. Screening will be accomplished through loca on, orienta on and 
use of landscaping to the maximum extent possible while s ll providing ease of access to 
residents and collec on services. Meter bank installa on will be guided in accordance with SRP, 
Tempe Water, and Southwest Gas standards and by the goals of minimizing their visual impact 
through loca on, minimizing exposed conduit and pan ng of conduit, landscape screening where 
prac cal and to the maximum extent feasible. 
 
 
Landscaping 
 

The overall landscape theme of Town Commons is inspired by the Sonoran Desert style pale e 
to create an a rac ve experience for residents and visitors alike. The design and materials create 
a sense of place within the site, while adding a fresh approach to a meless desert environment 
for the surrounding community. All plant species proposed adhere to the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources, “Low Water Use Plant List” in order to promote water efficiency stewardship 
and incorporate na ve vegeta on into the landscape environment. Site landscape will be 
irrigated by means of a low volume drip irriga on system that u lizes moisture sensing and 
weather‐based technology. 
 

The landscaping theme draws from the lush desert look and feel of an adapted Sonoran 
landscape, cra ed for the Arizona climate through the use of drought tolerant and na ve 
adapted elements. The use of Oaks and Elms along Avenida Del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road create 
an invi ng street frontage, providing a shady haven for all public users. These classic street trees 
will be complemented with large massings of colorful shrubs, accents and groundcovers. Trees 
along Avenida Del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road will be planted an average of 30’ on center. 
 
Plant material and loca on has been carefully considered. Plant material included is within the 
latest amended edi on of the "Low‐Water‐Using Plant List" approved by the Director of the 
Phoenix Ac ve Management Area of the Arizona Department of Water Resources. All trees shall 

91



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 10 of 13 

comply with the latest amended edi on of the "Arizona Nursery Associa on — Recommended 
Tree Specifica ons”. All plant material will meet the applicable minimum plan ng sizes and 
spacing required by the Town with spacing sufficient to allow plants to reach their natural mature 
size and form. Plant massing, coverage and density requirements of the Town are met for parking 
areas, common open space/reten on basins; intersec on setback areas; landscape setback 
areas; other perimeter landscape strips and rights‐of‐way. The grouping of plant species 
commonly found together in natural associa ons or of common environmental requirements 
(soil type, water, sun exposure, temperature limita ons, etc.) has been considered throughout 
the Project design. 
 

Landscaping is designed and will be installed and maintained in accordance with the Town’s 
stated basic principles of xeriscaping. Water features are placed only within small‐scale 
pedestrian/oriented places. Water feature designs reduce evapora on losses. Town Commons 
uses landscaping design to incorporate energy conserva on measures by shading of south and 
west sides of building by overhangs and/or trees and the provision of shade trees on the south 
and west side of streets. 
 
 
Signage 
 

The main entry to Town Commons buildings will have iden fying signage in a well‐landscaped 
se ng. Site directories are located at common access points for viewing by pedestrians and 
people in vehicles. Paving treatments are used at entryways, crosswalks and amenity areas. 
 
 
Property Management 
 

As a comprehensive and fully ver cally integrated real estate development services company, 
The Richman Group (“TRG”) maintains its own property management division internal to the 
company. TRG Management is a premier manager of mul family apartment communi es across 
the United States, with over 160,000 residen al units currently under their care.  
 

The Town expects TRG Management to create an excep onal living environment at Town 
Commons, in all areas of Property Management, including marke ng, training, financial 
repor ng, construc on management and maintenance to present an ‘A’ class property that the 
en re community will be proud to showcase.  
 
 
Grading and Drainage Summary 
 

Project parcels are planned to retain on‐site stormwater onsite as prescribed by the Town for the 
100‐year, 2‐hour storm event. Runoff generated by the new development will meet the 
applicable water quality standards imposed by the Town. Stormwater will be retained onsite are 
either in surface ponds or underground storage tanks. All reten on facili es designed will dispose 

92



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 11 of 13 

of stormwater via drywells. All finished floor eleva ons for new buildings will be set according to 
Town of Guadalupe requirements. 
 
 
U li es Summary 
 

Electrical transformers or other ground mounted u lity equipment will be painted to match the 
building to blend in with the Project architecture and landscaping. 
 

The Project will not adversely affect municipal or private facili es and services. Similarly, it will 
not have an adverse effect on exis ng or future public and private open space, recrea on, 
schools, or library facili es.  
 

The following list iden fies public and private services for the Property: 
 

Water: City of Tempe 
Sewer: City of Tempe 
Electric: SRP 
Gas: Southwest Gas 
School District: Chandler Unified School District 
Police: Maricopa County Sherriff 
Fire: Town of Guadalupe 

 
All new buildings will be served by private onsite water and sewer facili es. Domes c water and 
fire suppression services will be provided to each building from a looped onsite system that 
connects to exis ng facili es in Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui. Sanitary sewer services 
to each new building are planned as provided from private main extensions onsite that connect 
to the exis ng public main in Guadalupe Road. Dry u lity services are planned to connect to 
adjacent facili es located in the surrounding public roads. 
 
 
Phasing Plan 
 

Town Commons will be constructed in three dis nct phases. Arterial road frontages, landscaping 
and streetscape will be installed in conjunc on with onsite development. 
 
 
Summary 
 

The proposed PAD and Preliminary Development Plan conform with and promote the goals and 
objec ves of the Town of Guadalupe Long‐Range Plan, and will provide a modern, affordable 
residen al community for the Town. The Town Commons project will be a great complementary 
asset to the surrounding uses and represent the highest and best use for this currently vacant 
Property.  

93



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 12 of 13 

Exhibit A 
Vicinity map of the proper es 

 

“A” in the image below is APN 301‐06‐373 (approx. 2.80 acres) 

“B” in the image below is APN 301‐12‐121 (approx. 0.34 acres) 

“C” in the image below is APN 301‐12‐113 (approx. 0.65 acres) 
 
 

 
 
  

C

A

B

94



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 13 of 13 

Exhibit B 
 

Preliminary Development Plan 
 

 

95



96



9080 AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 

150FT NOTIFICATION AREA 

 

 

97



ASCEND CHURCH 
1615 E GUADALUPE RD 

TEMPE AZ USA 85285 

MARCELO GASTELO 
9034 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ISIDRO GASTELO 
9027 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 852832525 

JOSE LUCIO ORTEGA 
9038 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN GASTELO JR 
9031 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DANIEL TORRES 
9034 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

SAMUEL HOLGUIN 
9035 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

BARBERA ERIKA GARCIA 
9041 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MARY HELEN CANO 
8203 S CALLE MOCTEZUMA 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLF BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAYMOND ORTEGO GASTELLO 
9046 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN VITAL 
9042 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAUL GUZMAN 
2943 E OAKLAND CT 

GILBERT AZ USA 85295 

9080 AVENIDA DEL YAQUI MAILING LABELS
98



 

Town of Guadalupe
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
(480) 730 3080

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

The Guadalupe Town Council shall hold public hearings on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to consider 
the following rezoning request: 

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-02) – 9080 South Avenida del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe, as the 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the propertt located at 9080 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County 
Assessor parcel #301-12-121, comprising approximately 0.34 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 
Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the 
TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 
20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide 
a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback 
standards are also part of the PAD application. 

 

 
Written letters of objection or support may be submitted by adjacent landowners and potentially affected 
citizens to the Town Clerk via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall prior to, 
or at the time of the hearing. Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall. 

99



Date:   February 2, 2024 

From:   Sam Amaya, Town Planner, samaya@guadalupeaz.org 

Through:   Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, jkulaga@guadalupeaz.org 

To:   The Honorable Guadalupe Town Council 
 
Re:   RZ2024-02, Rezoning of Town Owned Land (APN 301-12-121) Staff Report 

 
 
Introduc�on 
 

The Town is the owner of the currently vacant 9080 S. Avenida Del Yaqui, designated APN 301-
12-121, zoned C-1 in the Town and comprising approximately 0.34 acres near the NW corner of 
Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui.  The Town is advancing this rezoning request of the 
subject property to facilitate new development of affordable mul�-family housing. 
 
 
Vicinity Map   
 

“B” in the image below is 9080 S. Avenida Del Yaqui (approx. 0.34 acres) 
“C” in the image below is 9084 S. Avenida Del Yaqui (approx. 0.65 acres) 
 

   

100



History 
 

The subject property �tle was the former site of the Guadalupe Town Hall.  Atached in Exhibit A 
is the warranty deed of the property, designa�ng the Town of Guadalupe as the legal owner of 
the property. 
 
On December 9, 2022, the Town issued a Request for Proposals seeking proposals for the future 
development of the subject property.  Respondents with team capability, previous experience, 
financial acumen and resources, and a reasonable method of approach were sought.  Three 
qualified responses were received before the response deadline.  The three respondents were 
the Guadalupe Community Development Corpora�on (“GCDC”), B&B Development & 
Construc�on (“B&B”), and The Richman Group (“TRG”). 
 
Here is a summary table of data included in the responses received: 
 

  RESPONDENT    DEVELOPMENT  PROPOSED           ASSETS UNDER PROPERTY 
   CONCEPT  DEVELOPMENT           MANAGEMENT OFFER (all sites) 
   INCLUDED         

 

  GCDC  NO  5 SF Homes, 2-story          65 Senior Units  $360K  
   Team of 1    $1M est. value           72 Family Units Close in 90 days 
                 126 SF Homes 
                 Would pursue Town provides lot  
         funding    splits 
 

 

  B&B   NO  Retail/Commercial Building.       9 SF Homes  $2.21M 
   Team of 2    40-unit “workforce” housing.     1 retail loca�on  
      $8M est. value           $25M in Managed  No Role for Town 
          construc�on 
 
 

  TRG   YES  3,000 s.f. New Retail           12,000 “affordable” $3.95M for Land 
    Team of 17    5,000 s.f. Community Space units   (equal to Town’s  
      88 “affordable” MFH Units           166,000+ units    appraised value)   
      60 “affordable” Senior Units    
      82 Homes            $20B in financed  Town included in 
      New “Town Square”  development        project planning 
     $98M est. value ($6.1M in  
        community uses 
  
 
A�er review and considera�on of the proposals, an award was made by the Town Council in a 
regular public mee�ng on March 9, 2023, to enter into exclusive nego�a�ons with The Richman 
Group for a Development Agreement comprising the subject property.  This Development 
Agreement will iden�fy the specific terms and provisions for future development of the property, 
and has been dra�ed concurrent with this rezoning request, for separate review and 
considera�on from this rezoning ac�on. 

101



 
This rezoning and the Development Agreement, if approved, may result in a The Richman Group 
comple�ng a compe��ve applica�on to the State Department of Housing for award of project tax 
credits or other funding support for a proposed mul�family project.  This rezoning will help 
support that compe��ve applica�on effort. 
 
 
Requirements for Approval of this Rezoning Request 
 

Because this is Town Owned property, the $400 filing fee for this rezoning has been waived per 
Town Code § 154.036.B.3.   
 

Per code Sec�on § 154.030 AMENDMENTS, the regulations and boundaries set forth in the 
chapter PROCEDURES may be amended, supplemented, changed, modified, or repealed 
whenever deemed necessary to best serve the public interest, health, comfort, safety, and 
general welfare of the citizens of the town.  Accordingly, this applica�on will defer the code 
requirement to provide a plot plan and final development plan. Any proposed project will submit 
those design documents for separate review and approval a�er a Development Agreement has 
been finalized, approved, and recorded.  
 

That Development Agreement will iden�fy requirements for any proposed project on this Subject 
Property to be designed with the community’s history and culture in mind, and with the needs of 
current and future residents, and ar�culated through subsequent submital of plans for review.   
 

This rezoning is a first step in the process of developing a project, by first establishing the 
applicable development standards to which any mul�-family project designer must conform. 
 
 
PAD Development Standards 
 

The Town’s Zoning Ordinance iden�fies the underlying zoning and related development standards 
for land within the Town’s corporate limits.  Per Code § 154.068 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT 
(PAD), PAD zoning is described as: 
  

(A)   Intent. The PAD District is intended and designed to: provide a means for development 
on a unit basis, ensuring orderly and thorough planning that will result in high quality urban 
design; encourage variety in architectural design through techniques, including, but not 
limited to, variations in building style, lot arrangements, and site planning; establish 
procedures that would reduce inequities occurring when strict application of zoning 
regulations pertaining primarily to small lots are applied to large lots; encourage innovative 
site planning, including, but not limited to, the preservation of natural character of the land 
and economy in construction and maintenance of streets and utilities; permit flexibility in 
design such that development would produce maximum choice in the type of environment, 
living units, commercial installations, and facilities available to the public; and produce an 
efficient, aesthetic, and desirable use of open space. 

102



 
This rezoning proposes the following development standards for the subject property’s PAD 
zoning:   
    Current C-1 Zoning  This PAD Request 

  
Maximum Height:   30 feet    54 Feet 
 

Density:   5,000 s.f for 1st 2 DU 
    1,250 s.f for DU’s above 2 61.0 DU/Acre 
 

Parking:   Minimum 1.0 spaces per  Minimum 0.5 per dwelling unit 
        efficiency unit 

Minimum 1.5 spaces per 
   each 1 and 2 bedroom unit 
Minimum 2.0 spaces per 
each unit containing  
more than 2 bedrooms 

 

Setbacks: 
 

Building Setbacks 
 

i. Guadalupe Road:  25-foot  (front)   18-foot (minimum 6-foot sidewalk  
12-foot  (side)   and 8-foot landscape strip) 

 
ii. Avenida Del Yaqui:  25-foot  (front)   18-foot (minimum 6-foot sidewalk  

12-foot  (side)   and 8-foot landscape strip) 
iii. Property Lines   
  adjacent to exis�ng  

          residen�al uses,   12-foot  (side) 
          inclusive of alleys:  15-foot (rear)   20-foot 

 

Landscape Setbacks 
 

i. Guadalupe Road:  25-foot  (front)   Landscape setback widths vary 
    12-foot  (side) 
    15-foot (rear)   The streetscape standard is  

measured at 18 feet from face of curb. 
 

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui Rd.: 25-foot (front)   Landscape setback widths vary  
 

 12-foot (side)   A minimum 6-foot wide public      
 15-foot (rear)   sidewalk is provided along Avenida  

Del Yaqui to accommodate the  
exis�ng right-of-way. 
 

        The streetscape standard is  
measured at 18 feet from face of     
curb. 

 

103



 
 
Preliminary Development Plan 
 

A preliminary plan for development is atached here as Exhibit B.  This plan will be advanced to a 
final plan for development through the development process of community outreach, planning 
and design.  The final plan for development, comprising but not limited to a site plan, open space 
plan, circula�on plan, and plans for provision of u�li�es, public art, and offsite improvements will 
be reviewed and approved separately from this rezoning ac�on through the Town’s normal plan 
review and permi�ng processes.  This requirement has been reiterated in the staff’s 
recommended zoning s�pula�ons in the final sec�on of this report. 
 
Conformance with General Plan 
 

Currently, the Town has a Council-approved Masterplan plan that has served as a precursor 
document to a General Plan as defined by ARS 9-461.05.  That document was adopted by Town 
Council on January 2, 2004, and provides guidance for future development, including: 
 

Overall Goals – Four are described in the plan 
o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town 
o Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance Economic Development 
o Improve Quality of Life 

 
This proposed PAD conforms to the long-range plan in the following ways: 
 

o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
By creating opportunities for new and affordable housing, Guadalupe residents who are 
seeking modern construction and amenities will have additional choices to remain in Town, 
close to relatives and within the community they call home, at an affordable price. 

 

o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town & Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance 
Economic Development 
These underutilized properties, when successfully transitioned into residential communities, 
can help promote the further diversification of the Town’s retail tax base by encouraging 
private sector investment into new retail uses - thereby helping to resolve the Town’s current 
structural deficit and ensuring the continuation of municipal services. 
 

o Improve Quality of Life 
There is a demonstrated need for new, affordable housing in the Town.   

 
 
No�fica�on for this Rezoning 
 

No�ces have occurred in accordance with Guadalupe zoning ordinance §154.034 NOTIFICATION. 
Exhibit C illustrates a map of the no�fica�on area.  

104



 
Atached in Exhibit D includes all no�fica�on materials posted, including: 

o Site posting  
o Site posting notice 
o Notice in newspaper  
o Mailing list 
o Mailing notice 

Exhibit E includes all writen emails and or leters received for this project from the public since 
January 24, 2024, the first day of statutory no�fica�on.  
 
 
Staff Recommended Condi�ons of Approval 
 

Per the Town’s Code § 154.030.C.1., any recommendation of approval for an amendment, or any 
adoption of an amendment, may be subject to such conditions as the Council deems applicable 
in order to fully carry out the provisions of this chapter. 
 
Therefore, if approved, staff recommends these condi�ons of approval, which are taken from the 
current Town Code § 154.068 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD), Paragraph B. Procedure; 
Paragraph C. Plan Requirements; and Paragraph D. Standards, and reiterate the requirements for 
development plan review: 
 
1.  The applicant shall submit within one year, a final development plan, which shall consist of a 
complete set of drawings and specifications for the proposed use and development. It shall be 
reviewed for conformity with the comprehensive plan, and with recognized principles of 
architectural design, land use planning, and landscape architecture. The final development plan 
also be reviewed for compliance with the PAD standards and substantial compliance with the 
preliminary plan. The Council shall review the final development plan for its compliance with the 
standards of this chapter and its substantial compliance with the preliminary development plan. 
 
2.   The final development plan and final plat shall be approved by the Council and the final plat 
duly recorded before any building permit is issued. 
 
3.   The Council may give the approval of the development plan contingent upon the completion 
of construction and improvements within a reasonable period of time. Failure to complete all 
improvements within said period of time shall be deemed sufficient cause for the Council to 
rescind the rezoning, unless an extension is requested by the developer or owner and approved 
by the Council. 
 
4.    The preliminary development plan shall contain at a minimum the following information: 
         (a)   Relationship of the property to the surrounding areas that will be affected by the 

proposed PAD; 

105



(b) Proposed pattern of land uses including areas to be conveyed, dedicated, or reserved
for public use.

(c) Schematic site plan for each building site and common open areas, showing the
approximate location of all structures, buildings, and improvements.

5. The final development plan shall contain, where applicable, the following information:
(a) All information contained in the preliminary development plan as refined and revised;
(b) Plans and elevations of all building types;
(c) Schematic grading plans including proposed treatment of slopes and drainage plans;
(d) The number of dwelling units by dwelling type;
(e) Projection of school enrollment generated by the proposed project;
(f) Street and lot patterns and building siting envelopes showing setbacks;
(g) Projection of traffic volumes within PAD and volumes generated by the PAD that will be

added to streets in the vicinity;
(h) Evidence of consultation with affected public agencies, including, but not limited to,

school districts, flood control districts, and coordination with plans of other appropriate
agencies;

6. Any agreements to lease the subject property to facilitate development shall describe
maintenance of all interior streets, parking areas, sidewalks, common land, parks and plantings
which have not been dedicated to the town in compliance with the town ordinances; and also a
performance bond or bonds which shall insure to the town that the dedicated public streets,
u�li�es, and other common development facili�es shall be completed by the developer within
the �me specified in the final development plan;

7. The Council may require that open space or screening be located along all or a portion of the
development boundaries.

8. All public streets, water mains, and sanitary sewer and storm sewer facilities shall comply with
appropriate ordinances and specifications of the Town.

9. Spaces for off-street parking and loading shall be provided in accordance with applicable
Town Codes at the time of building permit issuance.

10. Signs, on-site shall be subject to the provisions of applicable Town Codes at the time of
building permit issuance.

Town of Guadalupe 
Rezoning Case No. RZ2024-02 
Agenda Item G4. & G5., Town Council Mee�ng February 8, 2024. 
Page 7 of 12 

106



Exhibit A 
Warranty deed 

 
 

 
 
  

107



108



Exhibit B 
Preliminary Plan for Development  

 
 

109



 
Exhibit C 

Map of No�fica�on Area 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110



Exhibit D 
No�fica�on Materials atached to this document.  

o Site posting proof 
o Site posting 
o Notice in newspaper 
o Mailing list 
o Mailing notice 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111



9080 S. AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 

PUBLIC NOTICE JANUARY 24, 2024 

 

112



113



    
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T H E   R E C O R D   R E P O R T E R

RR#

~SINCE 1914~

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in THE
RECORD REPORTER. Please read this notice carefully and fax or e-mail
(record_reporter@dailyjournal.com) any corrections. The Affidavit will be filed,
if required, and mailed to you after the last date below. Publication date(s) for
this notice is (are):

Mailing Address : 2025 N THIRD ST #155, PHOENIX, AZ 85004-1425
Telephone (602) 417-9900 / Fax (602) 417-9910

Visit us @ www.RecordReporter.com

ROCIO RUIZ
TOWN OF GUADALUPE
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
GUADALUPE, AZ  85283

MCHRG NOTICE OF HEARING

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-02) - 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui

01/26/2024

Publication

Arizona Sales Tax

Total

$3.30

$0.02

$3.32

Notice Type: 

Ad Description

COPY OF NOTICE

3777320

Reference #

(Not an Affidavit of Publication. Do not file.)

Your Legal Publishing

!A000006673275!

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the last
date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive an
invoice.

Notice of Public Hearing The
Guadalupe Town Council shall hold
public hearings on Thursday,
February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South
Avenida del Yaqui, Council
Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to
consider the following rezoning
request: Rezoning Application
(RZ2024-02) – 9080 South Avenida
del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe,
as the Applicant, is requesting to
rezone the propertt located at 9080
South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa
County Assessor parcel #301-12-121,
comprising approximately 0.34 acres)
that is currently vacant and zoned C-1
Neighborhood Commercial to Planned
Area Development (PAD) to facilitate
future development of the TOWN
COMMONS project, comprised of 60
rental units for seniors. Buildings will
be set back a minimum of 20-feet
from existing residential uses,
inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD
development standards provide a
maximum building height of 54 feet,
and maximum density of 61 units per
acre. Custom parking and setback
standards are also part of the PAD
application. Written letters of objection
or support may be submitted by
adjacent landowners and potentially
affected citizens to the Town Clerk via
email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or
delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall
prior to, or at the time of the hearing.
Copies of the Application are available
for review at Guadalupe Town Hall.
1/26/24

RR-3777320#

114



ASCEND CHURCH 
1615 E GUADALUPE RD 

TEMPE AZ USA 85285 

MARCELO GASTELO 
9034 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ISIDRO GASTELO 
9027 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 852832525 

JOSE LUCIO ORTEGA 
9038 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN GASTELO JR 
9031 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DANIEL TORRES 
9034 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

SAMUEL HOLGUIN 
9035 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

BARBERA ERIKA GARCIA 
9041 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MARY HELEN CANO 
8203 S CALLE MOCTEZUMA 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLF BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAYMOND ORTEGO GASTELLO 
9046 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLPH BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN VITAL 
9042 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAUL GUZMAN 
2943 E OAKLAND CT 

GILBERT AZ USA 85295 

9080 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI MAILING LABELS
115



 

Town of Guadalupe
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
(480) 730 3080

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

The Guadalupe Town Council shall hold public hearings on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to consider 
the following rezoning request: 

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-02) – 9080 South Avenida del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe, as the 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the propertt located at 9080 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County 
Assessor parcel #301-12-121, comprising approximately 0.34 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 
Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the 
TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 
20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide 
a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback 
standards are also part of the PAD application. 

 

 
Written letters of objection or support may be submitted by adjacent landowners and potentially affected 
citizens to the Town Clerk via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall prior to, 
or at the time of the hearing. Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall. 

116



Exhibit E 
All writen emails and leters received for this project from the public since January 24, 2024. 

o Myers letter, January 25, 2024 
o Villegas letter, January 25, 2024 

 

117



David A. Myers
 Priest – Attorney

Guadalupe Law Center
5441 E. Calle San Angelo

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
480-838-3143

davidamyers@mindspring.com
January 25, 2024

Guadalupe Town Council
by Email

Re: Town Commons Project

Dear Mayor and Council Members,

My name is David A. Myers.  I am the owner of land parcel 301-06-372B, which is adjacent to
the proposed development parcel (301-06-370) at the southeast corner.  

I received notice of the proposed zoning change yesterday morning, January 24, 2024, by means
of a sign being posted on the property.  This is not sufficient time for the statutory notice. I am
sorry I cannot attend your meeting, but I already had other duties planned for that time.

From reviewing the proposal on the internet, I believe the Town, on behalf of Richman Group, is
asking the Town to change the zoning from R-1-9 to C-4 (also referred to as PAD).  C-4, PAD is
not defined.  Page 7, article 5 grants Richman Group the right to change the requirements by 10%
with administrative approval of the Town.    I believe C-4, PAD should be fully defined and that
changes should go through the Town Council. 

I believe the proposed population density is excessive.  The proposal has 132 apartments on the
northeast corner lot.   That would mean that approximately 525 people would live there.  About
250 vehicles would park there.  Excessive population would very likely result in physical and
mental illnesses.

The proposal calls for apartment buildings of 4 stories or 2 stories in height.  It states that they
can go to 54 ft. high.  I believe 2 stories should be the maximum.

I believe there should be use of solar energy–both for heating water and for electricity.  The
proposal does not include this.

If there is construction, will preference be given to Guadalupe residents to do the work?  The
Town council has repeatedly said that the Town should hire residents. 

The setbacks should be from the closest edge of an alley and a walk-way.

118

mailto:David.Myers@azbar.org


Ownership is a major issue.  Apparently Richman Group will be given ownership of the whole
project forever.   
      The entire area was given, free, by Mrs. Jenny Biehn for “Yaqui Indian home sites.”  In the
Olivas case, the court changed it to “Yaqui Indians, Mexican Americans, or persons of any other
race who are poor and in need of a home site.”    
       The Town got the land free from the Biehn Colony board. I do not believe this was lawful.  
I believe the land, or the apartments, should be given to the people, free, which is what Mrs.
Biehn intended.

What about diversity?  Federal law does not allow prejudice.  This is especially true if Federal
money is involved.   Most of the public housing in Guadalupe now goes to Yaqui people and
Mexican-American people.  Therefore most of this project would have to be rented to people of
other races.  This would destroy the culture of Guadalupe.

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute my ideas.

David A. Myers

119



120



121



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283   (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 1 of 5

1. Please complete this application and attach all required items as outlined.
2. Once submitted, please allow a minimum of two weeks for staff to review and determine whether

submittal is complete or additional information/material is needed.
3. Once application is determined complete and acceptable, staff will schedule a public hearing.
4. Complete/accepted application must be submitted to the Town Clerk in final form no less than 30 days prior to

scheduled Town council meeting. Applicant must attend all public hearings/meetings.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

Project name: 

Existing use of property:  

Proposed use of property: 

Existing zoning:   Requested zoning (if applicable):

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Township Range

Maricopa County Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)*: 

Subdivision Name & Lot # (if applicable/available)   

*Available at: https://mcassessor.maricopa.gov/

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

Name:   

Mailing Address:

Contact phone #:   Email:

Status (owner, agent, lessee, etc): 

APPLICATION MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING (per Town Code 154.036): 

Filing fee(s) (as outlined on page 2) – attach

Legal description – attach

Letter of explanation – complete page 3

Plot plan – attach

Site plan (drawn to scale, showing what is planned for the property, including lot dimensions, existing and proposed buildings,
etc.) – attach

Vicinity map of property owners within 150’ of property – attach

Mailing labels (Name/Address) for property owners within 150’ of property – attach

Proof of property ownership

PLANNING & ZONING APPLICATION
FOR: VARIANCE, CONDITIONAL USE OR ZONING CHANGE

Town Commons (C)

Vacant

Multi-Family Residential

C-1 PAD

301-12-113

1S 4E

Address: 9084 S Avenida del Yaqui 

Legal Description*: Section 5

Town of Guadalupe

   9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui

(480)-730-3080

Owner

WAIVED

DEF

DEF

clerk@guadalupeaz.org

(NW Corner / 0.65 acres / Lot C)

122



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283 (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 2 of 5 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  

______CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  

______VARIANCE FOR (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):

______Lot width ______Lot depth ______Building height

______Front setback ______Rear setback ______Sideyard setback

______ZONING CHANGE – AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP FOR:

______Single-family Residential 

______Multi-family Residential, Commercial, or Industrial Districts

______Planned Area Development 

PROPERTY OWNER: (If different from Applicant, complete the Property Owner Authorization statement below. Property owner’s 

signature must be notarized. For more than one owner, attach a separate sheet with notarized signatures, names and addresses.)

 Email:

to file this application and act on my behalf in 

Name:   N/A

Mailing Address:

Phone #:  

PROPERTY OWNER AUTHORIZATION:

I hereby authorize  

regard to this application. 

 (Signature) (Date)

(Notary Public)

The State of County of 
Subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me by  , the principal, 
and subscribed and sworn to me by  , the witness, this _______day of 
_________________(month), ________(year). 

(signed) 

Notary (Rezoning Applications Only)

X

X

123



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283  (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 3 of 5 

LETTER OF EXPLANATION:

Briefly describe the nature and intent of the proposed development and reasons justifying the request. Include references to effects on 

surrounding neighborhoods and the town at large.  

FEE SCHEDULE: 

Type of Application Fee Calculate Fees

Appeals of administrative decisions $25 

Site plan review application $50 

Amendments to the Zoning Map for: 

Continued items, continued at the request of the applicant after 
the property has been posted and public hearing notices are 
mailed 

$25 

Multi-family residential, commercial and industrial districts $400 

Planned area development $400 

Single-family residential $100 

Site plan review application $50 + $25/acre for 
each acre over one 

Conditional Use Permits 

Manufactured homes $50 

All other $50 

Variances 

Single-family residential $50 

All other $50 

TOTAL 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE: 

 (Signature)  (Date) 

View attached project narrative dated January 15, 2024.

$0

$400

Waived

124



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283 (480) 730-3080   (rev. Feb. 2022) 4 of 5 

STAFF USE ONLY 

Town of Guadalupe Review Process 

Case#  

Zoning District:  

Date of Application:  

Fee:  

Accepted by:  

Date Application Deemed Acceptable by Staff: 

Date of Legal Advertisement:   

Date(s) of Public Hearing(s):   

Council Decision:   

125



Town of Guadalupe    9241 South Avenida del Yaqui    Guadalupe, AZ 85283    services@guadalupeaz.org   (480) 730-3080 08/02/2022  5 of 5

RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – TOWN CODE §154.066 (E) (1) & (2)

MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS

Zoning 
District

Minimum Lot Area per 
D.U. First 2 D.U.

Minimum Lot Area 
per D.U. 

Add’l D.U.

Minimum 
Lot Width

Front Side Street Side Rear Maximum 
Building Height

R-2 5,000 square feet 75’ 25’ 7’* 20’ 20’ 30’

R-3 5,000 square feet 2,500 square feet 100’ 20’ 7’* 15’ 15’ 30’

R-4 5,000 square feet 1,250 square feet 100’ 20’ 7’* 15’ 15’ 30’

*For ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side.

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

Zoning District MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS Maximum Height

Front Side Street Side Rear

R-1-9 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’

R-1-6 25’ 7’ 15’ 10’ 30’

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – TOWN CODE §154.067(F)

Zoning District MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS Maximum Height

Front Side Street Side Rear

C-1 25’ 12’ 15’ 15’ 30’

C-2 20’ 12’ 15’ 15’ 30’

C-Mix 30’ 20’ 30’ 30’ 40’

The minimum provisions listed above shall not apply to any lot of smaller size already of record in the office of the County Recorder 
of Maricopa County, Arizona, before the effective date of this chapter.

TOWN OF GUADALUPE – ZONING CODE SETBACK REQUIREMENTSTOWN OF GUADALUPE – ZONING CODE SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

126



North 

Vicinity map of properties

“A” in the image below is APN 301-06-373 (approx. 2.80 acres) 
“B” in the image below is APN 301-12-121 (approx. 0.34 acres) 
“C” in the image below is APN 301-12-113 (approx. 0.65 acres) 

127



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 1 of 13 

 

PAD PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 

Town Commons 
 

Rezoning CASE Nos. RZ2024‐01, RZ2024‐02 and RZ2024‐03 
 

Submi al: January 15, 2024 
 

 

 
Project Loca on: NEC and NWC of 
Guadalupe Road & Avenida Del Yaqui 

  APNs 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 

128



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 2 of 13 

 
Project Overview 
 

On December 9, 2022, the Town issued a Request for Proposals seeking a development partner 
for the future development of vacant Town‐owned proper es at the corner of Guadalupe Road 
and Avenida Del Yaqui. Respondents with team capability, previous experience, financial acumen 
and resources, and a reasonable method of approach were sought.   
 

A er review and considera on of the proposals, an award was made by the Town Council in a 
regular public mee ng on March 9, 2023, to enter into exclusive nego a ons with The Richman 
Group for a Development Agreement comprising the subject property.  This Development 
Agreement has been submi ed for concurrent review and considera on by the Town Council 
along with this rezoning request.  
 
This rezoning and the Development Agreement, if approved, may result in a The Richman Group 
comple ng a compe ve applica on to the State Department of Housing for award of project tax 
credits or other funding support for their proposed mul family project in three dis nct phases. 
This rezoning will help support these compe ve applica on efforts. 
 
Town staff is making this rezoning request as representa ves of the Town to facilitate this future 
development.  A vicinity map of the proper es is a ached here as Exhibit A.  As further described 
in the concurrent Development Agreement, The Richman Group proposes to lease the subject 
proper es to develop affordable housing projects on the subject proper es in three separate 
phases, both comprising the “Town Commons” project. 
 
Two Phases of Town Commons, on the NEC of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui, will consist 
of nearly 132 family‐oriented affordable rental units – 68 and 64 units respec vely.  Phase two 
of Town Commons, on the NWC of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui, will consist of 60 
affordable homes for seniors. 
 
The Town Commons will create an intergenera onal community in three developments to serve 
neighbors seeking to con nue living in Guadalupe as they age, and residents who need accessible 
rent to grow deeper roots with their family.  
 
The proposed project has the poten al to help the Town overcome its growing structural deficit 
by increasing the poten al for resident spending, thereby suppor ng local retail businesses that 
contribute transac on taxes in support of General Fund services residents have come to expect 
and deserve.    
 
The loca on of the project phases at the intersec on of Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui 
provides the poten al for posi ve advancement of community art, architecture and resident 
ac vity at the most frequently travelled intersec on in our community. 
 
 

129



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 3 of 13 

Summary of Request 

The Town is the owner of the currently vacant proper es designated as APN numbers 301‐06‐373 
(zoned “R1‐9” in the Town and comprising approximately 2.80 acres); 301‐12‐121 (zoned “C‐1” in 
the Town and comprising approximately 0.34 acres); and 301‐12‐113 (zoned “C‐1” in the Town 
comprising approximately 0.65 acres) at the NE and SW corners of Guadalupe Road and Avenida 
Del Yaqui.   The Town is advancing this rezoning of the subject proper es to facilitate new 
development of mul ‐family housing. 

Rela onship to Adjacent Proper es 

The following table describes the uses, zoning and General Plan designa on for the proper es 
immediately adjacent to the subject proper es. 

Direc on Surrounding Uses Zoning  

North Residen al, Commercial C‐1, R1‐9 and R1‐6 

East Residen al R1‐9  

South Residen al, Commercial 
Civic Center C‐1, R1‐9 and R1‐6 

West Residen al R1‐6 

Conformance with General Plan 

Currently, the Town has a Council‐approved Master Plan that has served as a precursor 
document to a General Plan as defined by ARS 9‐461.05.  That document was adopted by Town 
Council on January 2, 2004, and provides guidance for future development, including: 

Overall Goals – Four are described in the plan 
o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town
o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town
o Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance Economic Development
o Improve Quality of Life

130



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 4 of 13 

This proposed PAD conforms to the long‐range plan in the following ways: 
 

o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
By creating opportunities for new and affordable housing, Guadalupe residents who are 
seeking modern construction and amenities will have additional choices to remain in Town, 
close to relatives and within the community they call home, at an affordable price. 

 

o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town & Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance 
Economic Development 
These underutilized properties, when successfully transitioned into residential communities, 
can help promote the further diversification of the Town’s retail tax base by encouraging 
private sector investment into new retail uses ‐ thereby helping to resolve the Town’s current 
structural deficit and ensuring the continuation of municipal services. 
 

o Improve Quality of Life 
There is a demonstrated need for new, affordable housing in the Town.   

 

 
 

 

 

131



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 5 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
Permi ed Uses 
 

All uses permi ed in the R‐4 Mul ‐Family Residen al District of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning 
Ordinance are permi ed with a residen al density of up to 60.0 units per acre for the NEC 
property (APN number 301‐06‐373 comprising approximately 2.80 acres); and 61.0 units per acre 
for the NWC proper es (APN numbers 301‐12‐121 & 301‐12‐113, comprising approximately 0.99 
acres). In addi on, up to 10,000 square feet of retail uses as iden fied in § 154.067.C. and  
154.067.D. ,COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS, are allowed across the phases of Town Commons.  All office 
uses are also allowed including professional, business, execu ve and all other office uses up to 
10,000 square feet for the phases of Town Commons. Live/work units are allowed. This PAD and 
Preliminary Development Plan establish the applicable development standards and design 
guidelines for the Property. 
 
 
PAD Development Standards 
 

All development standards in the C‐2 zoning district of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance 
shall apply on the Property, except as provided herein. In the event of a conflict between a 
provision of this applica on and a provision of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance, this 
applica on shall prevail. 
 

Density 
 

This amended PAD and accompanying PDP will allow the Property a maximum residen al 
density of 61.0 units per net acres across the Property and an overall density of 20.0 units 
per net acre across the original PAD Proper es. 
 
Building Height 

No building shall exceed 54 feet. 

132



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 6 of 13 

 
Streetscape Standards (from face of curb): 
 

i. Guadalupe Road: 18‐foot (minimum 6‐foot sidewalk and 8‐foot landscape strip) 

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui: 18‐foot (minimum 6‐foot sidewalk and 8‐foot landscape strip) 
 
Building Setback 

iii. Property Lines adjacent to exis ng Residen al uses, inclusive of alleys: 20 foot 
 
 
Parking 
 

The Project will incorporate surface parking and tuck‐under garages. As part of the visitor 
surface parking spaces at the main entry, the development will provide ridesharing 
loading/unloading parking spaces. The development may also provide several electrical 
charging sta ons for the residents. 
 
The parking will be well‐lit and landscaped to support a ground level experience in keeping 
with the standards of a high‐quality residen al community. Surface parking is set back at 
least 20 feet from all right‐of‐way lines. 
 
The Town currently requires the following parking: 

i. Minimum 1.0 parking spaces per efficiency unit 

ii. Minimum 1.5 parking spaces per each 1 and 2 bedroom unit 

iii. Minimum 2.0 parking spaces per each unit containing more than 2 bedrooms 
 

Each Project will provide the following parking: 

i. Minimum 1.25 parking spaces per dwelling unit for Phases 1 and 2 

ii. Minimum 0.5 parking spaces per dwelling unit for Phase 3 
 

 
Private Open Space 
 

The Town Commons project provides ameni es in its passive and ac ve recrea on areas. 
Open space areas are well integrated throughout the Project. On‐site ameni es provide an 
equal and balanced distribu on of recrea on for resident access. The type and quan ty of 
furnishings, hardscape and ac ve recrea on elements vary, depending upon the loca on 
within the project and type of experience programmed. 

 
 
 

133



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 7 of 13 

 
Devia ons 
 

The following include iden fied devia ons from code requirements for mul family housing, 
and provided Project design elements will replace contradic ng city standards: 
 
1. Landscape setback widths vary as iden fied above. 

 
2. A minimum 6‐foot wide public sidewalk is provided along Avenida Del Yaqui to 
accommodate the exis ng right‐of‐way. 
 
3. The streetscape standard is measured at 18 feet from face of curb. 
 
4. Building height is at 54 feet. 
 
5.  Minor  Modifica ons  for  Town  Commons:  Minor modifica ons shall be processed 
through an administra ve review by The Town Manager or designee. Modifica ons may 
include a 10% devia on to any approved development standard, including but not limited to 
required building setbacks, required streetscape dimensions, parking, density, building 
height, etc. 

 
 
Preliminary Development Plan 
 

A preliminary plan for development is a ached here as Exhibit B.  This plan will be advanced to a 
final plan for development through the development process of community outreach, planning 
and design.  The final plan for development, comprising but not limited to a site plan, open space 
plan, circula on plan, and plans for provision of u li es, public art, and offsite improvements will 
be reviewed and approved separately from this rezoning ac on through the Town’s normal plan 
review and permi ng processes.   
 
 
Architecture 
 

The Town Commons apartments are proposed as a comfortable urban architecture that takes 
references from the Town’s long history and tradi ons. Building on the transi on in the 
surrounding neighborhood toward this safe, clean and friendly environment, the architecture is 
proposed as an modern character of clean lines, open floor plans and a connec on to the 
outdoors, both visually and physically, providing a high design aesthe c. 
 

The overall architectural character for the development should respond to a regional awareness 
and history of the southwest and Arizona both visually and environmentally by: (1) 
acknowledging climate and solar considera ons; (2) u lizing natural light as much as possible; (3) 
using ver cal scale for contrast and importance; (4) choosing appropriate forms and materials; 

134



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 8 of 13 

(5) u lizing landscape materials to provide con nuity and aesthe cs; and (6) building a posi ve 
iden ty through a “sense of place” and architecture. 
 

An observer of the project on any side would note any expanse of building wall is broken up by a 
combina on of height and depth ar cula on, material changes, window and building openings, 
color, light and shadow control, and landscaping with upper, mid and pedestrian level treatments 
to create a visually interes ng and elegant design aesthe c in harmony with desert living. 
 

The project architecture and theming elements are carried into the amenity areas. Maintaining 
human scale building propor ons along street frontages create visual interest. Indoor spaces are 
integrated with outdoor spaces through a rac ve breezeways and project landscaping. 
 
 
Building Material/Color 
 

Accessory structures should be of similar architectural design and constructed of compa ble 
materials. Low reflec ve materials, textures, and colors should be used to reduce solar radia on. 
Choose colors which relate well to one another, to the proposed buildings and landscape 
materials and which are appropriate to the architecture and surrounding. 
 
 
Sustainability 
 

The Town Commons Apartments are designed with a focus on a range of sustainable 
considera ons to provide green building opportuni es for the development through building 
orienta on/loca on, shading, window design, building mechanics, conserva on of energy and 
water. 
 
The following are sustainable prac ces that are integrated into the Project: 
 

•Reusing a vacant infill property for the proposed mul ‐family development 

•Responding to the harsh southwest climate by incorpora ng materials and design method 
suitable for the region 

•Recognizing the value of human comfort zones and providing appropriate landscaping and 
adequate shading 

•Installing energy efficiency, Low E windows 

•Providing low vola le organic (VOC) paints, carpet and flooring 

•Providing light emi ng diode (LED) and energy efficient ligh ng technology within units, 
site, and parking ligh ng 

•Providing low flow plumbing fixtures to reduce water usage 

•Installing a minimum of 3 Energy Star rated ceiling fans. 

•Installing Energy Star rated hot water heater. 

•Providing high efficiency HVAC units 

135



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 9 of 13 

•Using roofing materials that specify a high Solar Reflectance Index for a minimum of 75% of 
the roof surface area 

•Shading surface parking spaces using vegeta on. 

•Landscaping and stormwater management that seeks to retain stormwater runoff where 
appropriate and allow it to provide water for landscaping and improve groundwater 
condi ons. 

•Providing open bike parking areas to allow residents an opportunity to have an alterna ve 
mode of transporta on 

 
 
Equipment Screening 
 

The roo op mechanical equipment is screened visually and integral to the architectural design 
of the project buildings. Trash enclosures are fully enclosed with concrete masonry unit (“CMU”) 
block walls and metal gates. Screening will be accomplished through loca on, orienta on and 
use of landscaping to the maximum extent possible while s ll providing ease of access to 
residents and collec on services. Meter bank installa on will be guided in accordance with SRP, 
Tempe Water, and Southwest Gas standards and by the goals of minimizing their visual impact 
through loca on, minimizing exposed conduit and pan ng of conduit, landscape screening where 
prac cal and to the maximum extent feasible. 
 
 
Landscaping 
 

The overall landscape theme of Town Commons is inspired by the Sonoran Desert style pale e 
to create an a rac ve experience for residents and visitors alike. The design and materials create 
a sense of place within the site, while adding a fresh approach to a meless desert environment 
for the surrounding community. All plant species proposed adhere to the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources, “Low Water Use Plant List” in order to promote water efficiency stewardship 
and incorporate na ve vegeta on into the landscape environment. Site landscape will be 
irrigated by means of a low volume drip irriga on system that u lizes moisture sensing and 
weather‐based technology. 
 

The landscaping theme draws from the lush desert look and feel of an adapted Sonoran 
landscape, cra ed for the Arizona climate through the use of drought tolerant and na ve 
adapted elements. The use of Oaks and Elms along Avenida Del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road create 
an invi ng street frontage, providing a shady haven for all public users. These classic street trees 
will be complemented with large massings of colorful shrubs, accents and groundcovers. Trees 
along Avenida Del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road will be planted an average of 30’ on center. 
 
Plant material and loca on has been carefully considered. Plant material included is within the 
latest amended edi on of the "Low‐Water‐Using Plant List" approved by the Director of the 
Phoenix Ac ve Management Area of the Arizona Department of Water Resources. All trees shall 

136



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 10 of 13 

comply with the latest amended edi on of the "Arizona Nursery Associa on — Recommended 
Tree Specifica ons”. All plant material will meet the applicable minimum plan ng sizes and 
spacing required by the Town with spacing sufficient to allow plants to reach their natural mature 
size and form. Plant massing, coverage and density requirements of the Town are met for parking 
areas, common open space/reten on basins; intersec on setback areas; landscape setback 
areas; other perimeter landscape strips and rights‐of‐way. The grouping of plant species 
commonly found together in natural associa ons or of common environmental requirements 
(soil type, water, sun exposure, temperature limita ons, etc.) has been considered throughout 
the Project design. 
 

Landscaping is designed and will be installed and maintained in accordance with the Town’s 
stated basic principles of xeriscaping. Water features are placed only within small‐scale 
pedestrian/oriented places. Water feature designs reduce evapora on losses. Town Commons 
uses landscaping design to incorporate energy conserva on measures by shading of south and 
west sides of building by overhangs and/or trees and the provision of shade trees on the south 
and west side of streets. 
 
 
Signage 
 

The main entry to Town Commons buildings will have iden fying signage in a well‐landscaped 
se ng. Site directories are located at common access points for viewing by pedestrians and 
people in vehicles. Paving treatments are used at entryways, crosswalks and amenity areas. 
 
 
Property Management 
 

As a comprehensive and fully ver cally integrated real estate development services company, 
The Richman Group (“TRG”) maintains its own property management division internal to the 
company. TRG Management is a premier manager of mul family apartment communi es across 
the United States, with over 160,000 residen al units currently under their care.  
 

The Town expects TRG Management to create an excep onal living environment at Town 
Commons, in all areas of Property Management, including marke ng, training, financial 
repor ng, construc on management and maintenance to present an ‘A’ class property that the 
en re community will be proud to showcase.  
 
 
Grading and Drainage Summary 
 

Project parcels are planned to retain on‐site stormwater onsite as prescribed by the Town for the 
100‐year, 2‐hour storm event. Runoff generated by the new development will meet the 
applicable water quality standards imposed by the Town. Stormwater will be retained onsite are 
either in surface ponds or underground storage tanks. All reten on facili es designed will dispose 

137



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 11 of 13 

of stormwater via drywells. All finished floor eleva ons for new buildings will be set according to 
Town of Guadalupe requirements. 
 
 
U li es Summary 
 

Electrical transformers or other ground mounted u lity equipment will be painted to match the 
building to blend in with the Project architecture and landscaping. 
 

The Project will not adversely affect municipal or private facili es and services. Similarly, it will 
not have an adverse effect on exis ng or future public and private open space, recrea on, 
schools, or library facili es.  
 

The following list iden fies public and private services for the Property: 
 

Water: City of Tempe 
Sewer: City of Tempe 
Electric: SRP 
Gas: Southwest Gas 
School District: Chandler Unified School District 
Police: Maricopa County Sherriff 
Fire: Town of Guadalupe 

 
All new buildings will be served by private onsite water and sewer facili es. Domes c water and 
fire suppression services will be provided to each building from a looped onsite system that 
connects to exis ng facili es in Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui. Sanitary sewer services 
to each new building are planned as provided from private main extensions onsite that connect 
to the exis ng public main in Guadalupe Road. Dry u lity services are planned to connect to 
adjacent facili es located in the surrounding public roads. 
 
 
Phasing Plan 
 

Town Commons will be constructed in three dis nct phases. Arterial road frontages, landscaping 
and streetscape will be installed in conjunc on with onsite development. 
 
 
Summary 
 

The proposed PAD and Preliminary Development Plan conform with and promote the goals and 
objec ves of the Town of Guadalupe Long‐Range Plan, and will provide a modern, affordable 
residen al community for the Town. The Town Commons project will be a great complementary 
asset to the surrounding uses and represent the highest and best use for this currently vacant 
Property.  

138



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 12 of 13 

Exhibit A 
Vicinity map of the proper es 

 

“A” in the image below is APN 301‐06‐373 (approx. 2.80 acres) 

“B” in the image below is APN 301‐12‐121 (approx. 0.34 acres) 

“C” in the image below is APN 301‐12‐113 (approx. 0.65 acres) 
 
 

 
 
  

C

A

B

139



Narra ve for Town Commons PAD  
APN #’s 301‐06‐373; 301‐12‐121; 301‐12‐113 
Page 13 of 13 

Exhibit B 
 

Preliminary Development Plan 
 

 

140



141



142



9084 AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 

150FT NOTIFICATION AREA 

 

 

143



SAMUEL HOLGUIN 
9035 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ESMERALDA VILLA 
9430 S CALLE MARAVILLA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAYMOND ORTEGO GASTELLO 
9046 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

BARBERA ERICKA GARCIA 
9041 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MANUEL CORRALES 
9205 CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN VITAL 
9042 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MARY HELEN CANO 
8203 S CALLE MOCTEZUMA 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

SUZUKI REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
12010 S EQUESTRIAN TRL 
PHOENIX AZ USA 85044 

JOSE LUCIO ORTEGA 
9038 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLPH BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DANIEL TORRES 
9034 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLF BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLF BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

9084 AVENIDA DEL YAQUI MAILING LABELS
144



 

Town of Guadalupe
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
(480) 730 3080

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

The Guadalupe Town Council shall hold public hearings on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to consider 
the following rezoning request: 

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-03) – 9084 South Avenida del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe, as the 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the property located at 9084 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County 
Assessor parcel #301-12-113, comprising approximately 0.65 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 
Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the 
TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 
20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide 
a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback 
standards are also part of the PAD application. 

 

 
Written letters of objection or support may be submitted by adjacent landowners and potentially affected 
citizens to the Town Clerk via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall prior to, 
or at the time of the hearing. Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall. 
 

145



Date:   February 2, 2024 

From:   Sam Amaya, Town Planner, samaya@guadalupeaz.org 

Through:   Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager/Clerk, jkulaga@guadalupeaz.org 

To:   The Honorable Guadalupe Town Council 
 
Re:    RZ2024-03, Rezoning of Town Owned Land (APN 301-12-113) Staff Report 

 
 
Introduc�on 
 

The Town is the owner of the currently vacant 9084 S. Avenida Del Yaqui, designated APN 301-
12-113, zoned C-1 in the Town and comprising approximately 0.65 acres near the NW corner of 
Guadalupe Road and Avenida Del Yaqui.  The Town is advancing this rezoning request of the 
subject property to facilitate new development of affordable mul�-family housing. 
 
 
Vicinity Map   
 

“B” in the image below is 9080 S. Avenida Del Yaqui (approx. 0.34 acres) 
“C” in the image below is 9084 S. Avenida Del Yaqui (approx. 0.65 acres) 
 

   
 

146



History 
 

The subject property �tle was conveyed from Chee Lee and Helen Lee to the Town of Guadalupe 
by a Warranty Deed recorded on September 27, 1985, atached here as Exhibit A. 
 
On December 9, 2022, the Town issued a Request for Proposals seeking proposals for the future 
development of the subject property.  Respondents with team capability, previous experience, 
financial acumen and resources, and a reasonable method of approach were sought.  Three 
qualified responses were received before the response deadline.  The three respondents were 
the Guadalupe Community Development Corpora�on (“GCDC”), B&B Development & 
Construc�on (“B&B”), and The Richman Group (“TRG”). 
 
Here is a summary table of data included in the responses received: 
 

  RESPONDENT    DEVELOPMENT  PROPOSED           ASSETS UNDER PROPERTY 
   CONCEPT  DEVELOPMENT           MANAGEMENT OFFER (all sites) 
   INCLUDED         

 

  GCDC  NO  5 SF Homes, 2-story          65 Senior Units  $360K  
   Team of 1    $1M est. value           72 Family Units Close in 90 days 
                 126 SF Homes 
                 Would pursue Town provides lot  
         funding    splits 
 

 

  B&B   NO  Retail/Commercial Building.       9 SF Homes  $2.21M 
   Team of 2    40-unit “workforce” housing.     1 retail loca�on  
      $8M est. value           $25M in Managed  No Role for Town 
          construc�on 
 
 

  TRG   YES  3,000 s.f. New Retail           12,000 “affordable” $3.95M for Land 
    Team of 17    5,000 s.f. Community Space units   (equal to Town’s  
      88 “affordable” MFH Units           166,000+ units    appraised value)   
      60 “affordable” Senior Units    
      82 Homes            $20B in financed  Town included in 
      New “Town Square”  development        project planning 
     $98M est. value ($6.1M in  
        community uses 
  
 
A�er review and considera�on of the proposals, an award was made by the Town Council in a 
regular public mee�ng on March 9, 2023, to enter into exclusive nego�a�ons with The Richman 
Group for a Development Agreement comprising the subject property.  This Development 
Agreement will iden�fy the specific terms and provisions for future development of the property, 
and has been dra�ed concurrent with this rezoning request, for separate review and 
considera�on from this rezoning ac�on. 
 

147



This rezoning and the Development Agreement, if approved, may result in a The Richman Group 
comple�ng a compe��ve applica�on to the State Department of Housing for award of project tax 
credits or other funding support for a proposed mul�family project.  This rezoning will help 
support that compe��ve applica�on effort. 
 
 
Requirements for Approval of this Rezoning Request 
 

Because this is Town Owned property, the $400 filing fee for this rezoning has been waived per 
Town Code § 154.036.B.3.   
 
Per code Sec�on § 154.030 AMENDMENTS, the regulations and boundaries set forth in the 
chapter PROCEDURES may be amended, supplemented, changed, modified, or repealed 
whenever deemed necessary to best serve the public interest, health, comfort, safety, and 
general welfare of the citizens of the town.  Accordingly, this applica�on will defer the code 
requirement to provide a plot plan and final development plan. Any proposed project will submit 
those design documents for separate review and approval a�er a Development Agreement has 
been finalized, approved and recorded.  
 

That Development Agreement will iden�fy requirements for any proposed project on this Subject 
Property to be designed with the community’s history and culture in mind, and with the needs of 
current and future residents, and ar�culated through subsequent submital of plans for review.   
 

This rezoning is a first step in the process of developing a project, by first establishing the 
applicable development standards to which any mul�-family project designer must conform. 
 
 
PAD Development Standards 
 

The Town’s Zoning Ordinance iden�fies the underlying zoning and related development standards 
for land within the Town’s corporate limits.  Per Code § 154.068 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT 
(PAD), PAD zoning is described as: 
  

(A)   Intent. The PAD District is intended and designed to: provide a means for development 
on a unit basis, ensuring orderly and thorough planning that will result in high quality urban 
design; encourage variety in architectural design through techniques, including, but not 
limited to, variations in building style, lot arrangements, and site planning; establish 
procedures that would reduce inequities occurring when strict application of zoning 
regulations pertaining primarily to small lots are applied to large lots; encourage innovative 
site planning, including, but not limited to, the preservation of natural character of the land 
and economy in construction and maintenance of streets and utilities; permit flexibility in 
design such that development would produce maximum choice in the type of environment, 
living units, commercial installations, and facilities available to the public; and produce an 
efficient, aesthetic, and desirable use of open space. 

 

148



This rezoning proposes the following development standards for the subject property’s PAD 
zoning:   
    Current C-1 Zoning  This PAD Request 

  
Maximum Height:   30 feet    54 Feet 
 

Density:   5,000 s.f for 1st 2 DU 
    1,250 s.f for DU’s above 2 61.0 DU/Acre 
 

Parking:   Minimum 1.0 spaces per  Minimum 0.5 per dwelling unit 
        efficiency unit 

Minimum 1.5 spaces per 
   each 1 and 2 bedroom unit 
Minimum 2.0 spaces per 
each unit containing  
more than 2 bedrooms 

 

Setbacks: 
 

Building Setbacks 
 

i. Guadalupe Road:  25-foot  (front)   18-foot (minimum 6-foot sidewalk  
12-foot  (side)   and 8-foot landscape strip) 

 
ii. Avenida Del Yaqui:  25-foot  (front)   18-foot (minimum 6-foot sidewalk  

12-foot  (side)   and 8-foot landscape strip) 
iii. Property Lines   
  adjacent to exis�ng  

          residen�al uses,   12-foot  (side) 
          inclusive of alleys:  15-foot (rear)   20-foot 

 

Landscape Setbacks 
 

i. Guadalupe Road:  25-foot  (front)   Landscape setback widths vary 
    12-foot  (side) 
    15-foot (rear)   The streetscape standard is  

measured at 18 feet from face of curb. 
 

ii. Avenida Del Yaqui Rd.: 25-foot (front)   Landscape setback widths vary  
 

 12-foot (side)   A minimum 6-foot wide public      
 15-foot (rear)   sidewalk is provided along Avenida  

Del Yaqui to accommodate the  
exis�ng right-of-way. 
 

        The streetscape standard is  
measured at 18 feet from face of     
curb. 

 
 

149



 
Preliminary Development Plan 
 

A preliminary plan for development is atached here as Exhibit B.  This plan will be advanced to a 
final plan for development through the development process of community outreach, planning 
and design.  The final plan for development, comprising but not limited to a site plan, open space 
plan, circula�on plan, and plans for provision of u�li�es, public art, and offsite improvements will 
be reviewed and approved separately from this rezoning ac�on through the Town’s normal plan 
review and permi�ng processes.  This requirement has been reiterated in the staff’s 
recommended zoning s�pula�ons in the final sec�on of this report. 
 
Conformance with General Plan 
 

Currently, the Town has a Council-approved Masterplan plan that has served as a precursor 
document to a General Plan as defined by ARS 9-461.05.  That document was adopted by Town 
Council on January 2, 2004 and provides guidance for future development, including: 
 

Overall Goals – Four are described in the plan 
o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town 
o Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance Economic Development 
o Improve Quality of Life 

 
This proposed PAD conforms to the long-range plan in the following ways: 
 

o Preserve the Uniqueness of the Town 
By creating opportunities for new and affordable housing, Guadalupe residents who are 
seeking modern construction and amenities will have additional choices to remain in Town, 
close to relatives and within the community they call home, at an affordable price. 

 

o Promote the Orderly Development of the Town & Strengthen Economic Base and Enhance 
Economic Development 
These underutilized properties, when successfully transitioned into residential communities, 
can help promote the further diversification of the Town’s retail tax base by encouraging 
private sector investment into new retail uses - thereby helping to resolve the Town’s current 
structural deficit and ensuring the continuation of municipal services. 
 

o Improve Quality of Life 
There is a demonstrated need for new, affordable housing in the Town.   

 
 
No�fica�on for this Rezoning 
 

No�ces have occurred in accordance with Guadalupe zoning ordinance §154.034 NOTIFICATION. 
Exhibit C illustrates a map of the no�fica�on area.  
 

150



Atached in Exhibit D includes all no�fica�on materials posted, including: 
o Site posting  
o Site posting notice 
o Notice in newspaper  
o Mailing list 
o Mailing notice 

Exhibit E includes all writen emails and or leters received for this project from the public since 
January 24, 2024, the first day of statutory no�fica�on.  
 
Legal Descrip�on  
 

A complete meets and bounds legal descrip�on of the property was not available at the �me 
this report was writen.  A legal descrip�on will accompany either the Development Agreement 
for Town Commons, and/or any lease for for this property.  
 
 
Staff Recommended Condi�ons of Approval 
 

Per the Town’s Code § 154.030.C.1., any recommendation of approval for an amendment, or any 
adoption of an amendment, may be subject to such conditions as the Council deems applicable 
in order to fully carry out the provisions of this chapter. 
 
Therefore, if approved, staff recommends these condi�ons of approval, which are taken from the 
current Town Code § 154.068 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD), Paragraph B. Procedure; 
Paragraph C. Plan Requirements; and Paragraph D. Standards, and reiterate the requirements for 
development plan review: 
 
1.  The applicant shall submit within one year, a final development plan, which shall consist of a 
complete set of drawings and specifications for the proposed use and development. It shall be 
reviewed for conformity with the comprehensive plan, and with recognized principles of 
architectural design, land use planning, and landscape architecture. The final development plan 
also be reviewed for compliance with the PAD standards and substantial compliance with the 
preliminary plan. The Council shall review the final development plan for its compliance with the 
standards of this chapter and its substantial compliance with the preliminary development plan. 
 
2.   The final development plan and final plat shall be approved by the Council and the final plat 
duly recorded before any building permit is issued. 
 
3.   The Council may give the approval of the development plan contingent upon the completion 
of construction and improvements within a reasonable period of time. Failure to complete all 
improvements within said period of time shall be deemed sufficient cause for the Council to 
rescind the rezoning, unless an extension is requested by the developer or owner and approved 
by the Council. 

151



4. The preliminary development plan shall contain at a minimum the following information:
(a) Relationship of the property to the surrounding areas that will be affected by the

proposed PAD;
(b) Proposed pattern of land uses including areas to be conveyed, dedicated, or reserved

for public use.
(c) Schematic site plan for each building site and common open areas, showing the

approximate location of all structures, buildings, and improvements.

5. The final development plan shall contain, where applicable, the following information:
(a) All information contained in the preliminary development plan as refined and revised;
(b) Plans and elevations of all building types;
(c) Schematic grading plans including proposed treatment of slopes and drainage plans;
(d) The number of dwelling units by dwelling type;
(e) Projection of school enrollment generated by the proposed project;
(f) Street and lot patterns and building siting envelopes showing setbacks;
(g) Projection of traffic volumes within PAD and volumes generated by the PAD that will be

added to streets in the vicinity;
(h) Evidence of consultation with affected public agencies, including, but not limited to,

school districts, flood control districts, and coordination with plans of other appropriate
agencies;

6. Any agreements to lease the subject property to facilitate development shall describe
maintenance of all interior streets, parking areas, sidewalks, common land, parks and plantings
which have not been dedicated to the town in compliance with the town ordinances; and also a
performance bond or bonds which shall insure to the town that the dedicated public streets,
u�li�es, and other common development facili�es shall be completed by the developer within
the �me specified in the final development plan;

7. The Council may require that open space or screening be located along all or a portion of the 
development boundaries.

8. All public streets, water mains, and sanitary sewer and storm sewer facilities shall comply with 
appropriate ordinances and specifications of the Town.
 

152



9. Spaces for off-street parking and loading shall be provided in accordance with applicable 

Town Codes at the time of building permit issuance.

10. Signs, on-site shall be subject to the provisions of applicable Town Codes at the time of 

building permit issuance.

153



Exhibit A 
Warranty deed 

154



155



156



Exhibit B 
Preliminary Plan for Development  

 
 

157



Exhibit C 
Map of No�fica�on Area 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

158



Exhibit D 
No�fica�on Materials atached to this document.  

o Site posting proof 
o Site posting 
o Notice in newspaper  
o Mailing list 
o Mailing notice 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

159



9080 S. AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 

PUBLIC NOTICE HANUARY 24, 2024

 

160



161



    
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T H E   R E C O R D   R E P O R T E R

RR#

~SINCE 1914~

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in THE
RECORD REPORTER. Please read this notice carefully and fax or e-mail
(record_reporter@dailyjournal.com) any corrections. The Affidavit will be filed,
if required, and mailed to you after the last date below. Publication date(s) for
this notice is (are):

Mailing Address : 2025 N THIRD ST #155, PHOENIX, AZ 85004-1425
Telephone (602) 417-9900 / Fax (602) 417-9910

Visit us @ www.RecordReporter.com

ROCIO RUIZ
TOWN OF GUADALUPE
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
GUADALUPE, AZ  85283

MCHRG NOTICE OF HEARING

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-03) - 9050 South Avenida del Yaqui

01/26/2024

Publication

Arizona Sales Tax

Total

$3.30

$0.02

$3.32

Notice Type: 

Ad Description

COPY OF NOTICE

3777321

Reference #

(Not an Affidavit of Publication. Do not file.)

Your Legal Publishing

!A000006673274!

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the last
date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive an
invoice.

Notice of Public Hearing The
Guadalupe Town Council shall hold
public hearings on Thursday,
February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South
Avenida del Yaqui, Council
Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to
consider the following rezoning
request: Rezoning Application
(RZ2024-03) – 9084 South Avenida
del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe,
as the Applicant, is requesting to
rezone the property located at 9084
South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa
County Assessor parcel #301-12-113,
comprising approximately 0.65 acres)
that is currently vacant and zoned C-1
Neighborhood Commercial to Planned
Area Development (PAD) to facilitate
future development of the TOWN
COMMONS project, comprised of 60
rental units for seniors. Buildings will
be set back a minimum of 20-feet
from existing residential uses,
inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD
development standards provide a
maximum building height of 54 feet,
and maximum density of 61 units per
acre. Custom parking and setback
standards are also part of the PAD
application. Written letters of objection
or support may be submitted by
adjacent landowners and potentially
affected citizens to the Town Clerk via
email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or
delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall
prior to, or at the time of the hearing.
Copies of the Application are available
for review at Guadalupe Town Hall.
1/26/24

RR-3777321#

162



SAMUEL HOLGUIN 
9035 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

ESMERALDA VILLA 
9430 S CALLE MARAVILLA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RAYMOND ORTEGO GASTELLO 
9046 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

BARBERA ERICKA GARCIA 
9041 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MANUEL CORRALES 
9205 CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

JUAN VITAL 
9042 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

MARY HELEN CANO 
8203 S CALLE MOCTEZUMA 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

SUZUKI REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
12010 S EQUESTRIAN TRL 
PHOENIX AZ USA 85044 

JOSE LUCIO ORTEGA 
9038 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLPH BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

DANIEL TORRES 
9034 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLF BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

RUDOLF BILDUCIA 
8226 S CALLE AZTECA 

GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI 
GUADALUPE AZ USA 85283 

9084 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI MAILING LABELS
163



 

Town of Guadalupe
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
(480) 730 3080

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

The Guadalupe Town Council shall hold public hearings on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona, to consider 
the following rezoning request: 

Rezoning Application (RZ2024-03) – 9084 South Avenida del Yaqui: The Town of Guadalupe, as the 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the property located at 9084 South Avenida del Yaqui (Maricopa County 
Assessor parcel #301-12-113, comprising approximately 0.65 acres) that is currently vacant and zoned C-1 
Neighborhood Commercial to Planned Area Development (PAD) to facilitate future development of the 
TOWN COMMONS project, comprised of 60 rental units for seniors. Buildings will be set back a minimum of 
20-feet from existing residential uses, inclusive of alleys. The proposed PAD development standards provide 
a maximum building height of 54 feet, and maximum density of 61 units per acre. Custom parking and setback 
standards are also part of the PAD application. 

 

 
Written letters of objection or support may be submitted by adjacent landowners and potentially affected 
citizens to the Town Clerk via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org or delivered to Guadalupe Town Hall prior to, 
or at the time of the hearing. Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall. 
 

164



Exhibit E 
All writen emails and leters received for this project from the public since January 24, 2024. 

o Myers letter, January 25, 2024 
o Villegas letter, January 25, 2024 

 

165



David A. Myers
 Priest – Attorney

Guadalupe Law Center
5441 E. Calle San Angelo

Guadalupe, AZ 85283
480-838-3143

davidamyers@mindspring.com
January 25, 2024

Guadalupe Town Council
by Email

Re: Town Commons Project

Dear Mayor and Council Members,

My name is David A. Myers.  I am the owner of land parcel 301-06-372B, which is adjacent to
the proposed development parcel (301-06-370) at the southeast corner.  

I received notice of the proposed zoning change yesterday morning, January 24, 2024, by means
of a sign being posted on the property.  This is not sufficient time for the statutory notice. I am
sorry I cannot attend your meeting, but I already had other duties planned for that time.

From reviewing the proposal on the internet, I believe the Town, on behalf of Richman Group, is
asking the Town to change the zoning from R-1-9 to C-4 (also referred to as PAD).  C-4, PAD is
not defined.  Page 7, article 5 grants Richman Group the right to change the requirements by 10%
with administrative approval of the Town.    I believe C-4, PAD should be fully defined and that
changes should go through the Town Council. 

I believe the proposed population density is excessive.  The proposal has 132 apartments on the
northeast corner lot.   That would mean that approximately 525 people would live there.  About
250 vehicles would park there.  Excessive population would very likely result in physical and
mental illnesses.

The proposal calls for apartment buildings of 4 stories or 2 stories in height.  It states that they
can go to 54 ft. high.  I believe 2 stories should be the maximum.

I believe there should be use of solar energy–both for heating water and for electricity.  The
proposal does not include this.

If there is construction, will preference be given to Guadalupe residents to do the work?  The
Town council has repeatedly said that the Town should hire residents. 

The setbacks should be from the closest edge of an alley and a walk-way.

166

mailto:David.Myers@azbar.org


Ownership is a major issue.  Apparently Richman Group will be given ownership of the whole
project forever.   
      The entire area was given, free, by Mrs. Jenny Biehn for “Yaqui Indian home sites.”  In the
Olivas case, the court changed it to “Yaqui Indians, Mexican Americans, or persons of any other
race who are poor and in need of a home site.”    
       The Town got the land free from the Biehn Colony board. I do not believe this was lawful.  
I believe the land, or the apartments, should be given to the people, free, which is what Mrs.
Biehn intended.

What about diversity?  Federal law does not allow prejudice.  This is especially true if Federal
money is involved.   Most of the public housing in Guadalupe now goes to Yaqui people and
Mexican-American people.  Therefore most of this project would have to be rented to people of
other races.  This would destroy the culture of Guadalupe.

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute my ideas.

David A. Myers

167



168



169



RESOLUTION NO. R2024.03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL, DESIGNATING 
JEFF KULAGA, TOWN MANAGER / CLERK, AS THE CHIEF FISCAL OFFICER FOR OFFICIALLY SUBMITTING 
THE FISCAL YEAR 2025 EXPENDITURE LIMITATION REPORT TO THE ARIZONA AUDITOR GENERAL; AND 
REPEALING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. R2023.01 WITH RESOLUTION NO. R2024.03. 

 
 WHEREAS, A.R.S. §41-1279.07(E) requires each county, city, town, and community college district to annually 
provide to the Auditor General by July 31 the name of the Chief Fiscal Officer the governing body designated to officially 
submit the current year’s annual expenditure limitation report (AELR) on the governing body’s behalf; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Mayor and Council desires to designate the Town Manager / Clerk, Jeff 
Kulaga, as the Town of Guadalupe Chief Fiscal Officer; and, 
 
  WHEREAS, Entities must submit an updated form and documentation for any changes in the individuals 
designated to file AELR.   
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Guadalupe, Mayor and Council as 
follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The recitals above are hereby incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 
  

SECTION 2.  Jeff, Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, is hereby designated as the Town of Guadalupe’s Chief Fiscal Officer 
for purposes of submitting the fiscal year 2025 AELR to the Arizona Auditor General’s Office on the governing body’s 
behalf. 
 
SECTION 3.  Repealing and replacing Resolution No. R2023.01, adopted by the Guadalupe Town Council on February 
09, 2023, with Resolution No. R2024.03, dated February 08, 2024. 

   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, this 8th day of February, 

2024. 

 
 
 
 __________________________ 

 Valerie Molina 
 Mayor 

 
 
 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_________________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga David E. Ledyard, Esq. 
Town Manager/Clerk FAITH, LEDYARD & FAITH, PLC 
 Town Attorneys 

 
 

 

170


	02 08 24 RCM Agenda.pdf
	Informational Cover Memo.pdf
	D1. 11 09 23 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	G1._G2. a. 9050 Avenida del Yaqui Rezoning Application - RZ2024.01.pdf
	G1._G2. b. 9050 Avenida del Yaqui - Staff Report - RZ2024.01.pdf
	G3._G4. a. 9080 Avenida del Yaqui Rezoning Application - RZ2024.02.pdf
	G3._G4. b. 9080 Avenida del Yaqui_Staff Report_RZ2024.02.pdf
	G5._G6. a. 9084 Avenida del Yaqui Rezoning Application - RZ2024-03.pdf
	G5._G6. b. 9084 Avenida del Yaqui_Staff Report_RZ2024-03.pdf
	G7. a.  Designation of Chief Financial Officer - Resolution No. R2024.03.pdf



